
SHARP & TANNAN 
Chartered Accountants 

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT 

TO THE MEMBERS OF FUSION COSMECEUTICS PRIVATE LIMITED 

Report on the Audit of the Financial Statements 

Opinion 

We have audited the accompanying financial statements of Fusion Cosmeceutics Private 

Limited (the "Company"), which comprise the Balance Sheet as at March 31 2024 the Statement 
of Profit and Loss (including Other Comprehensive Income I Loss), the Statement of Changes In 
Equity and the Statement of Cash Flows for the year ended on that date and a summary of 
significant accounting policies and other explanatory information (hereinafter referred to as the 
"financial statements") 

In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us the 
aforesaid financial statements give the information required by the Companies Act. 2013 (the Act") 
in the manner so required and give a true and fair view In conformity with the Indian Accounting 

Standards prescribed under section 133 of the Act read with the Companies (Indian Accounting 
Standards) Rules. 2015, as amended, ("Ind AS") and other accounting pnnClples generally 
accepted in India, of the state of affairs of the Company as at March 31, 2024 and its loss total 
comprehensive loss. changes in equity and its cash nows for the year ended on that date. 

Basis for Opinion 

We conducted our audit of the financial statements in accordance with the Standards on Auditing 
("SA"s) specified under section 143(10) of the Act Our responsibilities under those standards are 
further described in the Auditor's Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements section 
of our report We are independent of the Company in accordance with the Code of Ethics issued 

by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India ("ICAI") together with the ethical requirements 
that are relevant to our audit of the financial statements under the provisions of the Act and the 

Rules made thereunder, and we have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities In accordance with 
these requirements and the !CAi's Code of Ethics. We believe that the audit evidence obtained by 

us is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit opinion on the financial statements. 

Information Other than the Financial Statements and Auditor's Report Thereon 

The Company's Board of Directors is responsible for the other information The other information 
comprises the information included in the Management Discussion and Analysis, Board's Report 

including Annexures to Board's Report, Business Respons1b1hty Report, Corporate Governance 
and ShnrAholder's Information, but does not include the financial statements and our auditor's 
report thereon. 

Our opinion on the financial statements does not cover the other information and we do not express 
any form of assurance conclusion thereon. 

In connection with our audit of the financial statements, our responsibihty 1s to read the other 
information and, in doing so, consider whether the other in 
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the financial statements or our knowledge obtained during the course of our audit or otherwise 
appears to be materially misstated. 

If, based on the work we have performed, we conclude that there is a material misstatement of this 
other information, we are required to report that fact. We have nothing to report in this regard. 

Responsibilities of Management and Those Charged with Governance for the Financial 
Statements 

The Company's Board of Directors is responsible for the matters stated In section 134(5) of the 
Act with respect to the preparation of these financial statements that give a true and fair view of 
the financial position, financial performance, including other comprehensive income, changes in 

equity and cash flows of the Company in accordance with the Ind AS and other accounting 
principles generally accepted in India. This responsibility also includes maintenance of adequate 
accounting records in accordance with the provIsIons of the Act for safeguarding the assets of the 
Company and for preventing and detecting frauds and other irregularities; selection and application 
of appropriate accounting policies; making Judgments and estimates that are reasonable and 
prudent; and design, implementation and maintenance of adequate internal financial controls, that 
were operating effectively for ensuring the accuracy and completeness of the accounting records 

relevant to the preparation and presentation of the financial statements that give a true and fair 
view and are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error. 

In prepanng the financial statements, management is responsible for assessing the Company's 
ability to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern 
and using the going concern basis of accounting unless management either intends to liquidate 
the Company or to cease operations, or has no realistic alternative but to do so. 

The Board of Directors is also responsible for overseeing the Company's financial reporting 
process. 

Auditor's Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements 

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements as a 
whole are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor's 
report that includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but Is not a 
guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with SAs will always detect a material 
misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can anse from fraud or error and are considered 
material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence the 
economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these financial statements. 

As part of an audit in accordance with SAs, we exercise professional judgment and maintain 
professional scepticism throughout the audit. We also: 

• Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether
due to fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to those nsks, and
obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.

The risk of not detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one
resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional omIssIons,

misrepresentations, or the override of internal control.
------
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• Obtain an understanding of internal financial control relevant to the audit in order to design
audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances. Under section 143(3)(1) of the 

Act, we are also responsible for expressing our opinion on whether the Company has
adequate internal financial controls system in place and the operating effectiveness of such

controls.

• Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of
accounting estimates and related disclosures made by the management

• Conclude on the appropriateness of management's use of the going concern basis of

accounting and, based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty
exists related to events or conditions that may cast significant doubt on the Company's

ability to continue as a going concern. If we conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we
are required to draw attention m our auditor's report to the related disclosures in the

financial statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our 
conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our auditor's report
However, future events or conditions may cause the Company to cease to continue as a
going concern.

• Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the financial statements,
including the disclosures, and whether the financial statements represent the underlying
transactions and events in a manner that achieves fair presentation.

Materiality Is the magnitude of misstatements in the financial statements that, individually or in 
aggregate, makes it probable that the economic decisions of a reasonably knowledgeable user of 
the financial statements may be influenced. We consider quantitative materiality and qualitative 
factors m (i) planning the scope of our audit work and in evaluating the results of our work. and (ii) 
to evaluate the effect of any identified misstatements in the financial statements. 

We communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters, the 

planned scope and timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including any significant 
deficiencies In internal control that we identify during our audit 

We also provide those charged with governance with a statement that we have complied with 

relevant ethical requirements regarding independence, and to communicate with them all 
relationships and other matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on our independence, and 
where applicable, related safeguards. 

From the matters communicated with those charged with governance, we determine those matters 
that were of most significance in the audit of the financial statements of the current period and are 
therefore the key audit matters. We describe these matters in our auditor's report unless law or 
regulation precludes public disclosure about the matter or when, in extremely rare circumstances, 
we determine that a matter should not be communicated in our report because the adverse 
consequences of doing so would reasonably be expected to outweigh the public Interest benefits 
of such communication. 
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Report on Other Legat and Regulatory Requirements 

1. As required by Section 143(3) of the Act, based on our audit we report that:

a) We have sought and obtained all the information and explanations which to the best of our

knowledge and belief were necessary for the purposes of our audit.

b) In our opinion, proper books of account as required by law have been kept by the Company

so far as it appears from our examination of those books.

c) The Balance Sheet, the Statement of Profit and Loss including Other Comprehensive

Income, Statement of Changes in Equity and the Statement of Cash Flows dealt with by
this Report are in agreement with the books of account.

d) In our opinion, the aforesaid financial statements comply with the Ind AS specified under
Section 133 of the Act.

e) On the basis of the written representations received from the directors as on March 31.

2024 taken on record by the Board of Directors, none of the directors is disqualified as on

March 31, 2024 from being appointed as a director in terms of Section 164(2) of the Act.

f) With respect to the adequacy of the internal financial controls with reference to financial

statements of the Company and the operating effectiveness of such controls, refer to our
separate Report in "Annexure A".

g) With respect to the other matters to be included in the Auditor's Report in accordance with

the requirements of section 197(16) of the Act, as amended:

In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given

to us. the company has not paid remuneration to any directors, hence provisions of section

197 read with Schedule V to the Act is not applicable to the company.

h) With respect to the other matters to be included in the Auditor's Report in accordance with

Rule 11 of the Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014, as amended, in our opinion

and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us:

1. The Company does not have any pending litigations which would impact its financial

position in its financial statements.

ii. The Company did not have any long-term contracts including derivative contracts for

which there were any material foreseeable losses.

iii. The Company is not required to transfer any amount to Investor Education and

Protection Fund.

iv. (a) The Management has represented that, to the best of its knowledge and belief, no

funds (which are material either individually or in the aggregate) have been advanced
or loaned or invested (either from borrowed funds or share premium or any other

sources or kind of funds) by the Company to or in any other person or entity, including

foreign entity ("Intermediaries"), with the understanding, whether recorded In writing

Page 4 of 11 



or otherwise, that the Intermediary shall, whether, directly or indirectly lend or invest 
in other persons or entities identified in any manner whatsoever by or on behalf of the 
Company ("Ultimate Beneficiaries") or provide any guarantee, security or the like on 
behalf of the Ultimate Beneficiaries; 

(b) The Management has represented, that, to the best of its knowledge and belief, no
funds (which are material either individually or in the aggregate) have been received
by the Company from any person or entity, including foreign entity ("Funding Parties"),
with the understanding, whether recorded in writing or otherwise, that the Company
shall, whether, directly or indirectly, lend or invest in other persons or entities Identified
in any manner whatsoever by or on behalf of the Funding Party ("Ultimate
Beneficiaries") or provide any guarantee, security or the like on behalf of the Ultimate
Beneficiaries;

(c) Based on the audit procedures that have been considered reasonable and
appropriate in the circumstances, nothing has come to our notice that has caused us
to believe that the representations under sub-clause (i) and (ii) of Rule 11(e), as
provided under (a) and (b) above, contain any material misstatement.

v During the year, the Company has not declared or paid any dividend. 

vi Based on our examination which included test checks, the company has used an 
accounting software for maintaining its books of account which has a feature of 
recording audit trail (edit log) facility and the same has operated throughout the year 
for all relevant transactions recorded in the software. Further, during the course of our 
audit we did not come across any Instance of audit trail feature being tampered with, 

As proviso to Rule 3(1) of the Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014 is applicable from 
April 1, 2023, reporting under Rule 11 (g) of the Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 
2014 on preservation of audit trail as per the statutory requirements for record 
retention is not applicable for the financial year ended March 31, 2024 

2. As required by the Companies (Auditor's Report) Order, 2020 (the "Order") issued by the
Central Government in terms of Section 143(11) of the Act, we give In "Annexure B" a
statement on the matters specified in paragraphs 3 and 4 of the Order

New Delhi, May 17, 2024 

SHARP & TANNAN 
Chartered Accountants 

Firm's Registration No 000452N 
by the hand of 

f<q,� ,.ANv�1\r

RAJKUMA�HULLAR 
Partner 

Membership No 092507 

DIN: 24092507BKFCCN9578 
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ANNEXURE "A" TO THE INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT 

(Referred to in paragraph 1 (f) under 'Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements' section 
of our report to the Members of Fusion Cosmeceutics Private Limited of even date) 

Report on the Internal Financial Controls with reference to Financials Statements under 

Clause {I) of sub�section 3 of Section 143 of the Companies Act, 2013 (the "Act") 

We have audited the internal financial controls with reference to financial statements of Fusion 
Cosmeceutics Private Limited (the ''Company") as of March 31, 2024 in conjunction with our 
audit of the financial statements of the Company for the year ended on that date. 

Management's Responsibility for Internal Financial Controls 

The Company's Management is responsible for establishing and maintaining internal financial 
controls with reference to financial statements based on the internal control over financial reporting 

criteria established by the Company considering the essentia I components of internal control 
stated in the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting issued 

by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India (the "ICAI''). These responsibilities inciude the 
design, implementation and maintenance of adequate internal financial controls that were 
operating effectively for ensuring the orderly and efficient conduct of its business. including 

adherence to company's policies, the safeguarding of its assets, the prevention and detection of 

frauds and errors, the accuracy and completeness of the accounting records, and the timely 

preparatton of reliable financial information, as required under the Act 

Auditor's Responsibility 

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the Company's internal financial controls with 

reference to financial statements based on our audit We conducted our audit in accordance with 
the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting (the "Guidance 
Note") issued by the ICAI and the Standards on Auditing prescribed under Section 143( 10) of the 

Acl to the extent applicable to an audit of internal financial controls with reference to financial 

statements. Those Standards and the Guidance Note require that we comply with ethical 
requirements and plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether 

adequate internal financial controls with reference to financial statements was established and 
maintained and if such controls operated effectively in all matenal respects. 

Our audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the adequacy of the 

internal financial controls with reference to financial statements and their operating effectiveness 
Our audit of internal financial controls with reference to financial statements included obtaining an 
understanding of internal financial controls with reference to financial statements, assessing the 
nsk that a material weakness exists, and testing and evaluating the design and operating 

effectiveness of internal control based on the assessed risk. The procedures selected depend on 
the auditor's judgement, including the assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the 
financial statements, whether due to fraud or error. 

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained, is sufficient and appropriate to provide a 
basis for our audit opinion on the Company's internal financial controls with reference to financial 
statements. 
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Meaning of Internal Financial Controls with reference to financial statements 

A company's internal financial control with reference to financial statements is a process designed 

to provide reasonable assurance regarding the reliability of financial reporting and the preparation 

of financial statements for external purposes in accordance with generally accepted accounting 

principles. A company's internal financial control with reference to financial statements includes 

those policies and procedures that (1) pertain to the maintenance of records that, in reasonable 
detail, accurately and fairly reflect the transactions and dispositions of the assets of the company, 

(2) provide reasonable assurance that transactions are recorded as necessary to permit

preparation of financial statements in accordance with generally accepted accounting pnnc1ples,

and that receipts and expenditures of the company are being made only in accordance with
authorisations of management and directors of the company; and (3) provide reasonable
assurance regarding prevention or timely detection of unauthorised acquisition, use, or disposition

of the company's assets that could have a material effect on the financial statements.

Inherent Limitations of Internal Financial Controls with reference to Financial Statements 

Because of the inherent limitations of internal financial controls over financial reporting, including 

the possibility of collusion or improper management override of controls, material misstatements 

due to error or fraud may occur and not be detected. Also, projections of any evaluation of the 

internal financial controls with reference to financial statements to future periods are subject to the 
nsk that the internal financial control with reference to financial statements may become 

inadequate because of changes in conditions, or that the degree of compliance with the policies 

or procedures may deteriorate. 

Opinion 

In our opinion, to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us, the 

Company has, in all material respects, an adequate internal financial controls with reference to 

financial statements and such internal financial controls with reference to financial statements were 

operating effectively as at March 31, 2024, based on the criteria for internal financial control with 

reference to financial statements established by the Company considering the essential 
components of internal control stated in the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls 

Over Financial Reporting issued by the ICAI 

New Delhi, May 17, 2024 

SHARP & TANNAN 

Chartered Accountants 

Firm's Registration No.000452N 

by the hand of 

�t".vvvwi�
RAJKUMAR KHULLAR 

Partner 
Membership No.092507 

UDIN. 24092507BKFCCN9578 
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ANNEXURE 'B' TO THE INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT 

(Referred to in paragraph 2 under 'Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements' section 

of our report to the Members of Fusion Cosmeceutics Private Limited of even date) 

(i) In respect of the Company's property, plant and equipment and intangible assets:

(a) (A) The Company has maintained proper records showing full particulars, including

quantitative details and situation of Property, Plant and Equipment

(B) The Company has maintained proper records showing full particulars of intangible
assets.

(b) The Company has a program of verification to cover all the items of Property, Plant and

Equipment and right-of-use assets in a phased manner which, in our opinion. Is
reasonable having regard to the size of the Company and the nature of ,ts assets
Pursuant to the program, certain Property, Plant and Equipment were physically verified

by the management during the year. According to the information and explanations

given to us, no material discrepancies were noticed during such verification.

(c) According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our

examination of the records of the Company, the Company is not having any immovable

properties.

(d) The Company has not revalued any of its Property, Plant and Equipment and 1ntang1ble
assets during the year

(e) No proceedings have been initiated during the year or are pending against the Company

as at March 31, 2024 for holding any benaml property under the Benami Transactions

(Prohibition) Act, 1988 (as amended in 2016) and rules made thereunder

(1i) (a) The inventory (excluding stocks with E-commerce Operators) has been physically verified 

by the management during the year. In respect of inventory lying with E-commerce 

Operators, these have substantially been confirmed by them. In our opinion, the frequency, 
coverage and procedure of such verification is reasonable. No discrepancies of 10% or more 

in the aggregate for each class of inventory were noticed. 

(b) The Company has not been sanctioned working capital limits in excess of Rs 5 Crores,

in aggregate, at any points of time during the year, from banks or financial institutions on the

basis of security of current assets and hence reporting under clause 3(ii)(b) of the Order is

not applicable.

(111) According to the information and explanations given to us. during the year, the company has
not made investments In, provided any guarantee or security or granted any loans or
advances in the nature of loans, secured or unsecured, to companies, firms, Limited Liability

Partnerships or any other parties. Hence, reporting under clause 3(iii)(a) to (f) of the Order

Is not applicable.
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(iv) According to the information and explanations given to us, the Company has not granted
any loans or made any investments or provided any guarantees or security to the parties

covered under Sections 185 and 186 of the Act. Accordingly, Paragraph 3 (1v) of the Order

are not applicable.

(v) According to the information and explanations given to us, the Company has not accepted

any deposits or amounts which are deemed to be deposits. Hence, reporting under clause

3(v) of the Order is not applicable.

(vi) The maintenance of cost records has not been specified by the Central Government under
sub-section (1) of section 148 of the Companies Act, 2013 Hence, reporting under clause
(vi) of the Order is not applicable to the Company.

(vii) According to the information and explanations are given to us, in respect of statutory dues:

(a) In our opinion, the Company has generally been regular in depositing undisputed

statutory dues, including Goods and SeNices tax, Provident Fund, Employees' State

Insurance, Income Tax, SeNice Tax, Cess and other material statutory dues

applicable to it with the appropriate authorities.

There were no undisputed amounts payable in respect of Goods and Service tax,

Provident Fund, Employees' State Insurance, Income Tax, Service Tax, Cess and
other material statutory dues in arrears as at March 31, 2024 for a period of more than

six months from the date they became payable.

(b) Details of statutory dues referred to in sub-clause (a) above which have not been

deposited as on March 31, 2024 on account of disputes are given below:

Name of Nature of Forum where Period to which Amount 

the Statute dues dispute is the amount 

Ipending relates 

Nil 

(viii) There were no transactions relating to previously unrecorded income that have been
surrendered or disclosed as income during the year in the tax assessments under the

Income Tax Act, 1961.

(1x) (a) According to the information and explanations given to us and as per the records of the

Company examined by us, the Company has not defaulted in the repayment of loans or

other borrowings or in the payment of interest thereon to financial 1nstitut1ons, banks and
other lender. The Company has, during the year, taken inter-corporate deposits/ loan

amounting to Rs. 750 Lakhs (from its Holding Company) which has not been due for

payment. Total loan outstanding as on the of balance sheet 1s Rs. 1350.00 Lakhs

(b) The Company has not been declared wilful defaulter by any bank or financial institution

or government or any government authority.
(c) The Company has not taken any term loan during the year and there are no outstanding

term loans at the beginning of the year and hence, reporting under clause 3(1x)(c) to (f)

of the Order is not applicable.
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(x) (a) The Company has not raised money by way of initial public offer or further pubhc offer
(including debt instruments) during the year and hence reporting under clause 3(x)(a) of the
Order is not applicable.

(b) According to the information and explanations given to us, the Company has not made
preferential allotment or private placement of shares during the year and the requirement of
section 42 of the Companies Act. 2013 have been complied with. The amount raised has
been used for the purposes for which the funds were raised.

(x1) (a) No fraud by the Company and no material fraud on the Company has been noticed or
reported during the year.

(b) No report under sub-section (12) of section 143 of the Companies Act has been flied in
Form ADT -4 as prescribed under rule 13 of Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014

with the Central Government, during the year and upto the date of this report
(c) No whistle-blower complaints have been received by the Company during the year (and
up to the date of this report).

(x11) According to the information and explanations given to us, the Company Is not a N1dhI 
company. Accordingly, Paragraph 3 (xii) of the Order is not applicable to the Company 

(x11I) According to the information and explanations given to us, all the transactions with the 
related parties are in compliance with Sections 177 and 188 of the Act and the relevant 
details have been disclosed in the Financial Statements etc., as required by the applicable 
accounting standards. 

(xiv) (a) According to the information and explanations given to us, the company has adequate
internal audit system commensurate with the size and nature of its business, and

(b} According to the information and explanations given to us, the company is not required
to have an internal audit system under section 138 of the Companies Act 2013 Hence
reporting under clauses (xiv)(b) of the Order is not applicable.

(xv) According to the information and explanations given to us, the Company had not entered

into any non-cash transactions with directors or persons connected with him during the year
Accordingly, compliance wlth the provisions of Section 192 of the Act is not applicable to the
Company

(xvi) (a) In our opinion, the Company is not required to be registered under section 45-IA of the
Reserve Bank of India Act, 1934. Hence, reporting under clause 3(xvi)(a), (b) and (C) of the
Order is not applicable.

(b) In our opinion, there is no core investment company within the Group (as defined in the
Core Investment Companies (Reserve Bank) Directions.

(xvi,) The Company has incurred cash losses amounting to Rs 396.59 Lakhs during the financial 
year covered by our audit and Rs.1345.14 Lakhs during the immediately preceding financial 
year. 

(xviii) There has been no resignation of the statutory auditors of the Company dunng the year
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(xix) On the basis of the financial ratios, ageing and expected dates of realization of financial
assets and payment of financial liabilities, other information accompanying the financial
statements and our knowledge of the Board of Directors and Management plans and based
on our examination of the evidence supporting the assumptions, nothing has come to our

attention, which causes us to believe that any material uncertainty exists as on the date of

the audit report indicating that Company is not capable of meeting its liabilities existing at
the date of the balance sheet as and when they fall due within a period of one year from the

balance sheet date. We, however, state that this is not an assurance as to the future viability
of the Company. We further state that our reporting is based on the facts up to the date of

the audit report and we neither give any guarantee nor any assurance that all liabilities falling
due within a period of one year from the balance sheet date, will get discharged by the
Company as and when they fall due.

(xx) The provisions of Section 135 of the Act in respect of Corporate Social Responsibility are
not applicable to the company. Hence, reporting under clauses 3(Xx)(a) and (b) are not
applicable to the company.

New Delhi, May 17, 2024 

SHARP & TANNAN 
Chartered Accountants 

Firm's Registration No.000452N 
by the hand of 

�tt�

RAJKUMAR KHULLAR 

Partner 
Membership No.092507 

IN: 24092507BKFCCN9578 
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Fusion Cosmeceutics Priv3te Limited 
CIN:U24230DL2003PTC423473 
Balance Sheet as at March 31, 2024 
(All amounts in Rs. Lakhs, except as otherwise stated) 

� 
Non-current assets 
Property, pla,,t and equipment 
Intangible assets 
Financial assets 

I.Other bank balances 

Current assets 
Inventories 
Flnancla1 assets 

l. Investments 
II. Trade receivables 
iii. Cash and cash equivalents 
Iv. Other financial assets 

Other current assets 

Tot.al assets 

Equity and liabilities 
Equity 
Equity share capital 
Instruments entirely in the nature of equity 
Other equity 
Total equity 

Non-current liabilities 
Financial llabllltles 

I. Borrowlnos 
Provisions 

Current liabilities 
Financial liabilities 

I. Trade payables 
(a) Total outstanding due of micro enterprises and small enterprises 

(b) Total outstanding due or creditors other than micro enterprises 
and small enterorises. 
II. other financial llabllitles 

Provisions 
Other current liabilities 

Total liabilities 
Total equity and liabilities 

As per our report of even date 
For Sharp & Tannan 
Chartered Accountants 
Firm Registration Number: 000452N 

Raikumar Khullar 
Partner 
Membershio no.: 092507 
Place: New Delhi 
Date: May 17, 2.024 

Notes 

3 
4 

10 

7 

5 
8 
9 

6 
l.1 

12 
13A 
13B 

14 
16 

18 

15 
16 
17 

As at 
March 31, 2024 

0.87 

28.20 

29.07 

623.39 

400.74 
l,252.64 

270.38 
2.56 

96.87 
2

1
646.58 

2 675.65 

100.00 
497.18 

(1
1
895.95) 

(1,298.77) 

1,350.00 
8.00 

1 358.00 

300.50 

662.59 

1,554.68 
98.65 

2,616.42 
3,974.42 
2,675.65 

As at 
March 31, 2023 

2.15 
0.04 

2.19 

695.35 

345.07 
77.33 

4.03 
265.59 

1
1

387.37 

1,389.56 

100.00 
497.18 

(1
1
497.63) 

(900.45) 

800.00 
4.69 

804.69 

275.94 

468.53 

0.07 

673.21 
67.57 

1
1
485.32 

2
1
290.01 

1
1
389.56 

For and on Behalf of Board of Directors of 
Fusion Cosmeceutics Private Limited 
ON: U24230DL2003PTC423473 

l � M,J,er Zairus 
rut·ector 
PIN: 09485679 
Place: Gurugram 
Date: May 17, 2024 

�/,Jv•
Rama�e� 
Director 
DIN: 09450611 

Place: Gurugram 
Date: May 17, 2024 



Fusion Co5meceutics Private Limited 

CIN:U24230DL2003PTC423473 

Statement of Profit and Loss for the year ended March 31, 2024 

( All amounts m Rs. Lakhs, except as otherwise stated) 

Income 

Revenue from operations 

Other Income 

Total income 

Expenses 

Cost of raw materlols consumed 

Purchases of traded goods 

Decrease/ (Increase) in Inventories of traded goods 

Employee benefits expenses 

Dcprec,at,on expenses 

Finance costs 

Other expenses 

Total expenses 

Profir/(Loss) before tax 

Tax expenses 

Current tax 

oererred tax charge 

Total tax expenses 

Profit / (Loss) for the period 

Other comprehensive income/(loss) (OCI) 

Items that will not be reclassified subsequently to profit or loss: 

Re-measurement gains/ (losses) on defined benefit plans 

Income tax effect 

Other comprehensive income/(loss) for the period, net of tax 

Total comprehensive loss for the period 

Earnings per equity share 

Basic 

Equity shares, Nominal value of Rs. 10 each 

Diluted 

Equity shares, Nominal value of Rs. 10 each 

As per our report of even date 

For Sharp & Tannan 

Chartered Accountants 

Firm Reg,stratton Number: 000452N 

Rajkumar Khullar 

Partner 

Membership no.: 092507 

Place: New Delhi 

Date: May 17, 2024 � 

� 

Notes 
Year ended Year ended 

March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023 

19 11,223.52 2,705.37 

20 15.39 7.29 

11,238.91 2,712.66 

21 217.09 

22 3,288.23 l,316.65 
23 71.95 (593.52) 

24 318.25 133.51 

25 1.32 1.53 

26 100.58 23.05 

27 7,856.49 2,961.02 

11,636.82 4,059.33 

(397.91) (1,346.67) 

29 183.89 

183.89 

(397.91) (1,530.56} 

(0.41) 2.44 

(0.41) 2.44 

(398.32) (1,528.12) 

28 

(21.13) (81.06) 

(21.13) (81.06) 

For and on Behalf of Board of Directors of 

Fusion Cosmeceutics Private Limited 

CIN: U24230DL2003PTC423473 

,,.,.J a� 
. ..-r Zairus 

irJtor 
IN: 09485679 

Place: Gurugram 

Date: May 17, 2024 

Place: Gurugram 

Date: May I 7, 2024 



Fusion Cosmeceutics Private Limited 
CIN: U24230DL2003PTC423473 
Statement of Changes in Equity for the year ended March 31, 2024 
(All amounts in Rs. Lakhs, except as otherwise stated) 

a) Equity share capital

Equity shares of Rs. 10 each issued, subscribed and fully paid 
As at April 01, 2022 
Issued durinq the year 
As at March 31, 2023 
Issued durinq the period 
As at March 31, 2024 

b) Instruments entirely in the nature of equity 

As at April 01, 2022 
Reclassified to eouitv durlno the period - Refer note below 
Issued durlnq the period 
As at March 31, 2023 
Issued durinq the period 
As at March 31, 2024 

Note: 

No. of Shares Amount 

10,00,045 100.00 

10,00,045 100.00 

10,00,045 100.00 

No. of Shares Amount 

3,73,306 446.00 
5 11 797 51.18 

8,85,103 497.18 

8,85,103 497.18 

On adoption of Ind AS, CCPS issued upto date of transition have been reclassified from equity to liability as at transition date. 
Further, as on 01-04-2022 the preference share has been classified as equity because of the change In terms pertaining to 
payment/redemption. 

Other eauitv 
Attributable to eauitv holders of the Comoanv 

Retained earnings 
Securities 
premium 

As at April 01, 2022 (1,201.73) 283.40 
Loss for the year (1,530.55) -

Other comprehensive income 2.44 -

Total comprehensive loss ll,528.12} -

Add: increase during the year - 948.82 
As at March 31, 2023 (2 729.85} 1 232.22 
Loss for the year (397.91) -

Other comprehensive loss (0.41l -
Total comprehensive loss (398.33} -

Add: Increase during the year 
As at March 31. 2024 (3,128.17} 1,232.22 

Corporate information and summary of significant accounting policies (refer note 1 & 2) 
The accompanying notes are an Integral part of the standalone financial statements. 

As per our report of even date 
For Sharp & Tannan 
Chartered Accountants 
Firm Registration Number: 000452N 

Rajkumar Khullar 
Partner 
Membership no.: 092 
Place: New Delhi 
Date: May 17, 2024 

For and on Behalf of Board of Directors of 
Fusion Cosmeceutics Private Limited 
CIN: U24230DL2003PTC423473 

i,i.;,u, 
rictor 
N: 09485679 
ce: Gurgram 

Date: May 17, 2024 

Raman 7�.e 
Director..,. 

DIN: 09450611 
Place: Gurgram 
Date: May 17, 2024 

Total 

(918.33) 
{1,530.55) 

2.44 
(1.528.12} 

948.82 
(1 497.631 

(397.91) 
(0.411 

(398.33} 
-

(1,895.95} 



Fusion Cosmeceutics Private Limited 
CIN:U24230DL2003PTC423473 
Cash flow statement for the year ended March 31, 2024· 
(All amounts in Rs. Lakhs, except as otherwise seated) 

Operating activities 
Profit/ (Loss) before tax 
Non-cash adjustments to reconcile profit before tax to net cash ffows: 

Gain on sale of Investments measured at FVTPL 
Fair value gain on Investments measured at FVTPL 
Depreciation of property, plant and equipment 
Amortisation of Intangible assets 
Provision ror slow moving Inventory 
Provision ror Bad and Doubtful Debts 
Interest Income 
Debt payable to Creditors Writeoff 
Provision for gratuity and leave encashmerit 
Finance costs 

Ooeratina cash flow before workino capital chanoes 
Movement In working capital: 

(Increase)/ Decrease In trade receivables 
(Increase)/ Decerease in other financial assets 
Increase/ (Decrease) In trade payables 
Increase/ (Decrease) in financial liabilities 
Increase/ (Decrease) in provisions 
(Increase)/ Decrease in other non-current assets 
(Increase)/ Decrease in inventories 
rncrease / (Decrease) in other current liabilities 
(Increase)/ Decrease In other current assets 

Income tax paid 
Net cash flow generated from / (used In) operating activities {A) 

Investing activities 
Purchase of orooertv. olant and eouioment 
Investment in deooslts 
Investment In Mutual Funds 
Sale of Investment 
Interest received 
Net cash flow used In investing activities (Bl 

Financing activities 
Proceeds from borrowings 
Repayment of borrowings 
Proceeds from Issue of Preference Share 
Repayment of Short term borrowings 
Finance cost 
Net cash flow generated from financing activities (C) 

Net increase in cash and cash equivalents (A+B+C) 
Cash and cash equivalents at the beginning of the year 
Cash and cash equivalents at the end or the year 

Components of cash and cash equivalents 
Balance with banks 
- On current accounts 
- Cash In hand 
Total cash and cash equivalents 

March 31, 2024 
Borrowin s- CCPS 
Total liabilities from financing activities 

March 31, 2023 
Borrowings- CCPS 
Total liabilities from financing activities 

Opening 
balance 

446.00 
446.00 

Corporate Information and summary of significant accounting policies (refer note 1&2) 
The accompanying notes are an Integral part or the standalone financial statements. 

As per our report of even date 
Chartered Accountants 
flrm Registration Number: 000452N 

Raikumar Khullar 
Partner 
Membershiu no.: 092507 
Place: New Delhi 
Date: May 17, 2024 

Notes Year ended Year ended 
March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023 

(397.91 l C 1346.67) 

(0.49) 
(0.74) 
1.28 1.53 
0.04 

42.42 
5.50 

(1.42) (0.50) 
9.88 
4.61 

J00.58 23.05 
(236.25) /1322.59} 

(913.07) (300.88) 
1.56 (4.03) 

208.74 576. 75 
(0.07) (40.03) 

879.76 650.94 
71.07 

29.54 (608.36) 
31.08 46.57 

168.72 (264.36) 
170.01 ( 1194.92) 

170.01 (1194.92) 

(2.20) 
(28.20) 

(600.00) 
200.49 

1.33 0.50 
(426.38) (1.70) 

750.00 800.00 
(200.00) 

l.000.00 
(224.10) 

(100.58) {23.05) 
44!!.42 1.ss:us

193.05 356.23 
77.JJ (278.90) 

270.38 77.33 

267.48 77.19 
2.90 0.14 

270.38 77.33 

Cash Non- cash Closing balance flows movement 

(446.00) 
(446.00) 

For and on Behalf of Board of Directors of 
Fusion Cosmeceutics Private Limited 
CIN: U24230DL2003PTC423473 

nst�lz:rus 
�r,;r�r 
DIN: 09485679 
Pllrt:e: Gurugram 
Date: May 17, 2024 

<v1. o\�
Raman �t'� i 
Director/ 
DIN; 09450611 
Place: Gurugram 
Date: May 17,-2024 



Fusion Cosmeceutics Private Limited 
CIN: U24230DL2003PTC423473 
Notes to the Financial Statements for the year ended March 31, 2024 
(All amounts In Rs. Lakhs, except as otherwise stated) 

1 Corporate Information 
The Company Is a private company domlc1led In India and Is incorporated under the provisions of the Companies Act, 2013 ('the Act') on June 30, 
2003 In Delhi. The registered office of the Company is located at Unit No 404, 4th floor, City Centre, Plot No OS, Sector-12, Dwarka, New Delhi -
110075. 
The Company Is principally engaged In trading of dermatologist formulated skincare range, which are manufactured through third party contract 
manufacturers under the brand name of "DR. SHETH'S". 
The Company's financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2024, were approved for Issue In accordance with a resolution of the directors 
on May 17, 2024. 

1.2 Basis of preparation 
Ind AS Financial Statements of the Company as at and for the year ended March 31, 2024 are prepared In accordance with Indian Accounting 
Standards ('Ind AS') as amended from time to time, notified under Section 133 of the Companies Act, 2013 ('the Act') and other accounting 
principles generally accepted In India, along with the presentation requirements of Division II of Schedule lJl to the Act. 

These Ind-AS Financial Statements have been prepared on a going concern basis, 
The rnd-AS Financial Statements have been prepared on an accrual basis under the historical cost convention except for certain assets and 
liabilities that are measured at fair value as mentioned below. 

- defined benefit plans - plan assets measured at fair value 
- certain financial assets and liabilities measured at fair value (refer accounting policy regarding financial Instruments). 

The Ind-AS Financial Statements are presented in Indian Rupee (Rs). All the values are rounded off to the nearest Lakhs, upto two decimal 
places, except wl1en otherwise Indicated. 

2 Material accountinQ policies 
2.1 Current versus non-current classification 

The Company presents assets and liabilities In the balance sheet based on current/non-current classification. An asset Is treated as current wt,en 
It Is: 
• expected to be realized or intended to be sold or consumed In normal operating cycle; 
• held primarily for the purpose of trading; 
• expected to be realized within twelve months after the reporting period; or 
• cash or cash equivalent unless restricted from being exchanged or used to settle a llablllty for at least twelve months after the reporting period. 
All other assets are classified as non-current. 

A liability is current when: 
• expected to be settled in normal operating cycle; 
• held primarily for the purpose of trading; 
• due to be settled within twelve months after the reporting period; or 
• there Is no unconditional right to defer the settlement of the llablllty for at least twelve months after the reporting period. 
The Company classifies all other llabilltles as non-current. 
The Operating cycle is the time between the acQuisltlon of assets for processing and their realisation In cash and cash equivalents. The Company 
has Identified twelve months as Its operating cycle. 

2.2 Foreign currency translation 

(I) Functional and presentation currency: 
Items included rn the Financial Statements of the Company are measured using the currency of the primary economic environment In which the 
entity operates (the functional currency). The financial statements are presented In Indian rupee (Rs), which Is functional and presentation 
currency of all tne entities in the Company. 

(II) Transactions and balances: 
Foreign currency transactions are translated into the functional currency using the exchange rates at the elates of the transactions. Foreign 
exchange gains and losses resulting from the settlement of such transactions and from the translation of monetary assets and llabllltles 
denominated In foreign currencies at period end exchange rates are recognised in statement of profit and toss. 

(Iii) Non-monetary Items that are measured in terms of historical cost In a foreign currency are translated using the exchange rates at the dates 
of the lnltlat transactions. Non-monetary items measured at fair value in a foreign currency are translated using the exchange rates at the date 
when the fair value is determined. The gain or loss arising on translation of non-monetary items measured at fair value ts treated In tine with the 
recognition of the gain or loss on the change In fair value of the item (I.e., translation differences on items whose fair value gain or loss is 
recognised in OCI or profit or loss are also recognised In OCI or profit or loss, respectively). 

2.3 Fair value measurement 
'Fair value' Is the price that would be received to sell an asset or paid to transfer a llablllty In an orderly transaction between market participants 
at the measurement date in the principal market or, in Its absence, the most advantageous market to which the Company has access at that 
date. The fair value of a liability reflects Its non-performance risk. 

The fair value of an asset or a liability is measured using the assumptions that market participants would use when pricing the asset or liablllty, 
assuming that market particlpc1nts act In their economic best Interest. 

A fair value measurement of a non-financial asset takes into account a market participant's ability to generate economic benefits by using the 
asset In Its hlghest and best use or by selling It to another market participant that would use the asset In its highest and best use. 

All assets and liabilities for which fair value is measured or disclosed In the Financial Statements are categorised within the fair value hierarchy, 
described as follows, based on the lowest level Input that is significant to the fair value measurement as a whole: 

• Level 1 - Quoted (unadjusted) market prices In active markets for Identical assets or llabillttes 
• Level 2 - Valuation techniques for which the lowest level input that is significant to the fair value measurement is directly or indirectly 
observable 
• Level 3 - Valuation techniques for which the lowest level input that is significant to the fair value measurement Is unobservable 
For assets and llabtlltles that are recognised In the financial Stc1tements on a recurring basis, the Company determines whether transf ers have 
occurred between levels in the hierarchy by re-assessing categorisation-(base e lowest level input that is sl to the fair value 
measurement as a whole) at the end of each reporting period. ,J 0. �C • 
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Fusion Cosmeceutics Private Limited 
CIN: U24230DL2003PTC423473 
Notes to the Financial Statements for the year ended March 31, 2024 
(All amounts in Rs. Lakhs, except as otherwise stated) 

2.4 Property, plant and equipment 
Property, plant and eQulpment Is stated at cost, net of accumulated depreciation and accumulated Impairment losses, if any. Capital work-In­
progress is stated at cost. Such cost comprlses of the purchase prlce and any directly attributable cost of bringing the asseL to Its working 
condition for Its Intended use. Any trade discounts and rebates are deducted In arriving at the purchase price. Such cost Includes the cost of 
replacing part of the property, plant and equipment. 

Wilen signlficant parts of property, plant and equipment are required to be replaced at Intervals, the Company deprecrates them separately based 
on their specific useful lives. All other repair and maintenance costs are recognised In the stc1tement of proAt and loss as Incurred. 

The Company Identifies and determines cost of each component/ part of the asset separately, if the component/ part has a cost which is 
significant to the total cost of the asset and has useful life that is materially different from that of the remaining asset. Items of stores and spares 
that meet the definition of property, plant and equipment are capitalized at cost and depreciated over their useful life. Otherwise, such Items are 
classified as Inventories. 

The exchc1nge differences arising on translation/settlement of long-term foreign currency monetary items perta,nmg to the acquisition of a 
depreciable asset are charged to the statement of profit and loss. 
Depreciation on property, plant c1nd equipment is calculated on a written down vc1lue over the useful lives of assets estimated by the 
management, as below: 
Asset category 

Office equipment 
Plant and Machinery 
Computer & peripherals 

Useful lives estimated by the 
management (years) 

5 
15 

3 to 6 

Useful lives as per schedule II of 
the Act (years) 

5 

15 

3 to 6 

An Item of property, plant and eQulpment and any s,gnlfrcant part Initially recognised 1s derecognlsed upon disposal or when no future economic 
benefits are expected from its use or disposal. Any gain or loss arising on de-recognition of the asset (calculated as the difference between the 
nel disposal proceeds and the carrying amount of the asset) Is Included In the statement of profit and loss when the asset Is derecognlzed. 

The useful lives have been determined based on managements' Judgement which in certam instances are different from those specified by 
Schedule !I to the Companies Act, 2013, In order to reflect the actual usage of the assets. The assets residual values, method of depreciation and 
useful life are reviewed, and adjusted If appropriate, prospectively at the end of each reporting period. An asset's carrying amount is written down 
Immediately to Its recoverable amount If the asset's carrying amount Is greater than Its estimated recoverable amount. 

2,5 Intangible assets 
lntangible assets acquired separately are measured on initial recognition .it cost. The cost or intangible assets acquired In a business combination 
Is their fair value at the date of acquisition. Following Initial recognition, intangible assets are carried at cost less any accumulated arnorllsatlon 
and accumulated Impairment losses. Internally generated Intangibles are not capitalised and the related expenditure ,s reflected In profit or loss rn
the period In which the expenditure rs incurred. 

The useful lives of intangible assets are assessed as either finite or Indefinite. 

Intangible assets with Anite lives are amortised over the useful economic life and assessed for Impairment whenever there ls an indication that 
the Intangible asset may be impaired. The amortisation period and the amortisation method for an intangible asset with a flnlte useful life are 
reviewed at least at the end of each reporting period. Changes In the expected useful life or the expected pattern of consumption of future 
economic benefits embodied in the asset are considered to modify the amortisation period or method, as appropnare, and are treated as changes 
In accounting estimates. The amortiS<1tlo11 e><pense on intangible c1ssets with finite lives Is recognised in the statement of profit and loss unless 
such expenditure forms part of carrying value of another asset, 

rntangible assets with Indefinite useful lives are not amortised, but c1re tested ror impairment annually, either individually or at the cash· 
gene.rating unit level. The assessment of Indefinite life is reviewed annually to determine whether the Indefinite life continues to be supportable. If 
not, the change in useful life from Indefinite to finite Is made on a prospective basis. 

An Intangible asset is derecognlsed llpon disposal (I.e., at the date the recipient obtains control) or when no future economic benefits are 
expected from its use or disposal. Any gain or loss arising upon derecognitmn of the asset (calculated as the difference between the net disposal 
proceeds and the carrying amount of the asset} Is Included In the statement of profit and loss. when the asset Is derecognlsed. 
A summary of the policies applied to the Company's intangible assets is, as follows: 
Intangible assets 

Patent & Trademarks 

2,6 Impairment of non-financial assets 

Useful lives 

7 years 

Amortisation 
method used 

Stra1oht Line 

Internally generated or acquired 

The Campany assesses, at each reporting date, whether there Is an Indication that an asset may be Impaired. If any Indication exists, or when
annual Impairment testing for an asset is required, the Company estimates the asset's recoverable amount. An asset's recoverable amount Is the 
higher of an asset's or cash-generating unit's (CGU) fair value less costs of disposal and its value In use. The recoverable amount Is determined 
for an individual asset, unless the asset does not generate cash inflows that are largely independent of those from other assets or Companys of 
assets. When the carrying amount of an asset or CGU exceeds Its recoverable amount, the asset Is considered impaired and is written down to its
recoverable amount. 

In assessing value In use, the estimated future cash flows are discounted to their present value using a pre-tax discount rate that reflects current 
market assessments of the tlme value of money and the risks specific to the asset. In determining fair value less costs of disposal, recent market 
transactions are taken Into account. [f no such transactions can be identified, an appropriate valuation model Is used. These calculations are 
corroborated by valuation multiples, quoted share prices for publicly traded companies or other available fair value Indicators. 

The Company bases Its Impairment calculation on detailed budgets and forecc1st calculations, which ore prepored separately for each of the 
Company's CGUs to which the indlv1dual assets are allocated. These budgets and forecast calculations generally cover a period of five years. For 
longer periods, a long-term growth rate Is calculated and applied to project future cash flows after the fifth year. To estimate cash flow projections 
beyond periods covered by the most recent budgets/rorecasts, the Company extrapolates cash now proJectrons In the budget us!ng a steady or 
declining growth rate for subsequent years, unless an Increasing rate can be justified. In any case, this growth rate does not e'Xceed the long-
term average growth rate for the products, industries, or ._,__-=:~ e Company operates, or � ;1rket In which the 
asset Is used. 

� ,2-: Co� '.Yo 
o o

(jl 

*



Fusion Cosmeceutics Private Limited 
CIN:U24230DL2003PTC423473 

Notes to the Financial Statements for the year ended March 31, 2024 

( All amounts In Rs. Lakhs, except as otherwise stated) 

2.7 Inventories 

Traded goods are valued at lower of cost and net realizable value. Cost Includes cost of purchase and other costs incurred in bringing the 
Inventories to their present location and condition. Cost Is determined on a weighted average basis 

Net realizable value Is the estimated selling pnce In the ordinary course of business, less estimated costs of completion and estimated costs 
necessary to make the sale. 

2.8 Revenue recognition 

Revenues are recognised when, or as, control of a promised goods or services transfers to customers, 1n an amount that reflects the consideration 
to which the Company expects to be entitled In exchange for transferring those goods or services. To recogn,se revenues the following five step 
approach Is applied: (1) Identify the contract with a customer, (II) Identify the performance obligation In the contract, (Iii) determine the 
transaction price, (iv) allocate the transaction price to the performance obligations in the contract, and (v) recognise revenues when a 
performance obligations Is satisfied. 

The following specific recognition criteria must also be met before revenue is recognrzed: 
Revenue from Sale of products 
Revenue from the sale of products Is recognised at a point in time when control of the products Is transferred to the customer and there Is no 
unfulfilled obligation that could affect the customer's acceptance of the products. Revenue from the sale of products is measured at the fair value 
of the consideration received or receivable, net of returns and allowances, discounts «Jnd Incentives. 

Variable consideration 
If the consideration in a contract Includes a variable amount (discounts and mcentives), the Company estimates the amounl of consideration to 
which It will be entitled In exchange for transferring the goods/services to the customer and such discounts and Incentives are estimated at 
contract inception and constrained until 1t 1s highly probable that a significant revenue reversal In the amount of cumulative revenue recognised 
will not occur when the associated uncertainty with the variable consideration is subsequently resolved. The rights of return and volume rebates 
give rise to variable consideration. 
Rights of return 
The Company uses the expected value method to estimate the variable consideration given the large number of contracts that have simllar 
characteristics. The Company then applies the requirements on constraining estimates of variable consideration In order to determine the amount 
of vanable consideration that can be included In the Lransaction price. A refund liability Is recognized for the goods that are expected to be 
returned (I.e., the amount not Included In the transaction price). A right of return asset (and corresponding adjustment to cost of sales) is also 
recognised for the right to recover the goods from a customer. 
Volume rebates 
The Company applies the most likely amount method or the expected value method to estimate the variable consideration In the contract. The 
selected method that best predicts the amount of variable conslderat,on rs primarily driven by the number of volume thresholds contamed In the 
contract. The most likely amount Is used for those contracts with a single volume threshold, while the expected value method is used For those 
with more than one volume threshold. The Company then applies the requirements on constraining estimates In order to determine the amount of 
variable consideration that can be Included In the transaction price and recognised as revenue. A refund liability for the expected future rebates. 

l.nterest income 
Interest income ls recognized on a time proportion basis taking Into account the amount outstanding and the applicable Interest rate. Interest 
mcome 1s Included under the head "other income" In the statement of profit and loss. 
Contract balances 

contra� assets 
A contract asset Is the right to consideration In exchange for goods or services transferred to the customer. If the Company performs by 
transferring goods or services to a customer before the customer pays consideration or before payment is due, a contract asset 1s recognised for 
the earned consideration that is conditional. Contract assets are subject to Impairment assessment. Refer to accounting policies on Impairment of 
financial assets In section 2.11 Financial Instruments - lnitfal recognition and subsequent measurement. 
I&!.e...I.ew.!t.� 
A trade receivable Is recognised if an amount of consideration 1s unconditional (1.e., only Lile passage of time is required before payment of the 
consideration Is due). 
Contract liabilities 
A contract habillty Is recognised if a payment is received or a payment Is due (whichever 1s earlier) from the customer before the Company 
transfers the related goods or services. Contract liab1iit1es are recognised as revenue when the Company performs under the contract (I.e., 
transfers control of the related goods or services to the customer). 

2.9 Employee Benefits 
S/]Ort3�rm ob/IQ.at/on.$ 
Uabllitles for wages and salaries, Including non-monetary benefits that are expected to be settled wholly within 12 months after the end or the 
period In which the employees render the related service are recognised In respect of employee's services up to the end of the reporting period 
and are measured at the amounts expected to be paid when the liabilities are settled. The liabilities are presented as current Anandal liabllltles ,n 
the balance sheet. 

Accumulated leave, which 1s expected to be utilized within the next 12 months, Is treated as short-term employee benefit. The Company 
measures the expected cost of such absences as the additional amount that It expects to pay as a result of the unused entitlement that has 
accumulated at the reporting date. The Company presents the accumulated leave liability as a current liability 1n the balance sheet, since it does 
not have ;,n uncondltlonal right to defer Its settlemo,nt for twelve mon'ths after the reporting date. 

Post-employment obligations 

The Company operates the followlng post-employment schemes: 
(a) defined benefit plans - gratuity, and 
(b) defined contribution plans such as provident fund. 
Defined benefit plans - Gratuity obligations 
The liability or asset recognised In the balance sheet In respect of deflned benefit gratuity plan Is the present value oF the defined benefit 
obligation at the end of the reporting period less the fair value of plan assets. The defined benefit obligation Is calculated annually by an 
Independent actuary using the projected unit credit method. 
The present value of the defined benel'lt obligation is determined by discounting the estimated future cash outflows by reference to market yields 
at the end of the reporting period on government bonds that have term approximating the term of the related obligation. The net Interest cost 1s 
calculated by applying the discount rate to the net balance of the denned benefit obligation and the fair value of plan assets. 
Remeasurement gains and losses arising from experience adjustments and changes In actuarial assumptions are recognised In the period In which 
they occur, directly in other comprehensive income. They are Included In retained earnings In Lhe statement of changes In equity and In the 
balance sheet. Such clccumulated re-measurement balances .ire never reclassified Into the statement of proftt and loss subsequently, 

-

Changes in the present value of the defined benefit obligation resulting from plan amendments or curtailments ar 
;.,.::=��,._ 

lately in 
profit or loss as past service costs. 

m of provident fund scheme rs the defined contnbulion plans. The Company has an the 
pany recognizes contribution payable to these schemes as an expenditure, when an late� 
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Fusion Cosmeceutics Private Limited 
CIN:U242300L2003PTC423473 
Notes to the Financial Statements for the year ended March 31, 2024 
( All amounts in Rs. Lakhs, except as otherwise stated) 

2.10 Financial instruments 
A financial instrument Is any contract that gives rise to a financial asset of one entity and a financial hab1hty or equity instrument of another 
entity. 
Financial assets 
Initial recognition and measurement 
All financial assets are recognised initially at fair value plus, 111 the case of financial assets not recorded at fair value through profit or loss, 
transaction costs tllat are attributable to tile acquisition of the financial asset. Purchases or sales of financial assets that require delivery of assets 
within a time frame established by regulation or convention in the market place (regular way trades) are recognised on the trade date, I.e. the 
date that the Company commits to purchase or sell the asset. 
Subseauent measurement 
For purposes of subsequent measurement, financial assets are classified in four categories: 
• Debt instruments at amortised cost 
• Debt instruments at fair Value Through Other Comprehensive income (FVTOCI) 
• Debt instruments and equity Instruments at Fair Value Through Profit and Loss (FVTPL) 
• EQuity Instruments measured at Fair Value Through other Comprehensive Income (FVTOCl) 
A 'debt Instrument' is measured at the amortised cost, If both of the following conditions are met: 
(1) The asset Is held within a business model whose objective Is to hold assets for collecting contractual cash flows; and 
(ii) Contractual terms of the asset give rise on specified dates to cash flows that are solely payments of principal and interest (SPPI) on the 
principal amount outstanding. 
Alter initial measurement, such financial assets are subsequently measured at amortised cost using the effective lnterest rate (EJR) method. 
Amortised cost Is calculated by taking Into account any discount or premium on acquisition and fees or costs that are an integral part of the EIR. 
The EJR amortisation Is Included In finance Income In the statement of profit and loss. The losses arising from Impairment are recognised In the 
statement of profit and loss. This category generally applies to trade and other receivables. 
A 'debt instrument' is classified as FVTOCI, if both of the following criteria are met: 
(i) The obJective of the business model 1s achieved both by collecting contractual cash flows and selling the financial assets; and 
(Ii) The asset's contractual cash flows represent SPPl. 
Debt Instruments Included within the FVTOCI category are measured Initially as well as at each reporting date at fair value. Fair value movements 
are recognized 1n OCI. However, the Company recognizes Interest income, Impairment losses and foreign exchange gain or loss in the statement 
of profit and loss. On de-recognition of the asset, cumulative gain or loss previously recognised i,i OCI Is reclasslAed from lhe equity to the 
statement of profit and loss. Interest earned whilst holding FVTOCI debt Instrument Is reported as interest Income using lhe ElR method. 

FVTPL 1s a residual category for debt instruments. Any debt instrument, which does not meet the criteria for categorization as at amortized cost or 
as FVTOCI, is classified as at FVTPL. Debt Instruments Included wlth1n the FVTPL category are measured at fair value with all changes recognized 
In the statement of profit and loss. 
All equity Investments in scope of Ind AS 109 are measured at raor value. Equity instruments which are held for trading are classlfled as at FVfPL. 
if the Company decides to classify an equity instrument as at FVTOC!, then all fair value changes on the Instrument, excluding dividends, are 
recognized In the OCI. There Is no recycling of the amounts from OCI to the statement of profit and loss, even on sale of the investments. Equity 
Instruments included within the FVfPL category are measured at fair value with all changes recognized 1n the statement or profit and loss. 

De-recoonltfon 

A financial asset (or, where applicable, a part of a financlal asset or part of a Company of simllar financial assets) is primarily derecognised (I.e. 
removed from the balance sheet) when: 
• The rights to receive cash flows from the asset have expired; or 
• The Company has transferred Its rights to receive cash flows from the asset and either (a) the Company has transferred substantially all the 
risks and rewards of the asset, or (b) the Company has neither transferred nor retained substantially all the risks and rewards of the asset, but 
has transferred control of the asset. 

Jmoairment of flnancla/ assets 
In accordance with Ind AS 109, the Company applies expected credit loss (ECL) model for measurement and recognition of impairment loss on 
the financial assets and credit risk exposure. The Company follows 'simplified approach' for recognition of Impairment loss allowance on Trade 
receivables. The application of simplified approach does not require the Company to track changes In credit risk. Rather, It recognises Impairment 
loss allowance based on lifetime ECL.5 at each reporting date, right from Its initial recognition. 

For recognition of Impairment loss on other financial assets and risk exposure, lifetime ECL is used. If, In a subsequent period, credit quality of the 
Instrument Improves such that there Is no lor1ger a significant increase in credit risk since initial recognition, then the entity reverts to recognising 
Impairment loss allowance based on twelve-month ECL. 
Lifetime ECL are the expected credit losses resulting from all possible default events over the expected life of a financial Instrument. The twelve­
month ECL Is a portion of the lifetime ECL which results from default events that are possible within twelve months a�er the reporting dc1te. ECL 
is the difference between all contractual cash flows that c1re due to the Company In accordance with the contract and all the cash flows that the 
Company expects to receive (i.e., all cash shortfalls), discounted at the original EIR. ECL impairment loss allowance (or reversal) recognized 
during the year Is recognized as Income/ expense in the statement of profit and loss. This amount is reflected under the head 'other expenses· in 
the statement of profit and loss. 
For assessing Increase in credit risk and impairment loss, the Company combines financial Instruments on the basis of shared credit risk 
charactenstics with the objectlve of facllltat1ng an analysis that Is designed to enable significant increases in credit nsk to be ldentiried on a timely 
basis. 
Financial liabilities 
Initial recognition and measurement 

All financial habilit1es are recognosed 1nltially at fair value. The Company's financial liabilities include trade and other payables, and Lease llabllltles. 

Subsequent measurement 

The measurement of financial liabilities depends on their classification. Flnancial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss Include financial 
liabilities held for trading and financial liabilities designated upon inrtlal recognition as fair value through profit or loss. Financial llab,lltles are 
classified as held for trading if they are Incurred for the purpose of repurchasing In the near term. Separated embedded derivatives are also 
classified as held for trading, unless they are designated as effective hedging instruments. Gains or losses on liabilitles held for trading are 
recognised In the statement of profit and loss. 
Financial liabilities designated upon initial recognition at fair value through profit or loss are designated as such at the Initial date of reco9.!!_itlon, 
and only If the criteria In Ind AS 109 are satisfied. for liabllltles designated as FVTPL, fair value gains/losses attnbutable to changes mown credit 
risk are recognized In OC!. These gains/losses are not subsequently transferred to the statement of profit and loss. How Company may 
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Notes to the Financial Statements for the year ended March 31, 2024 

(All amounts in Rs. Lakhs, except as otherwise stal'ed) 

2.10 Financial instruments (Continue) 
De-recoanition 
A financial liabillty ls derecognlsed when the obligation under the liability is discharged or cancelled or expired. When an existing financial liability 
is replaced by another from the same lender on substantially different terms, or the terms of an existing liability are substantially modified, such 
an exchange or modification Is treated as the de-recognition of the original liability and the recognition of a new liability. The difference In the 
respective carrying amounts is recognised In the statement of profit and loss. 
Reclassification of financial assets and liabilities 

The Company determines classification of financial assets and liabilities on initial recognition. A�er 1111tlal recognition, no re-classification Is made 
ror financial c1ssets which are equity instruments and financial l!abilities. 
For financial assets which are debt Instruments, a re-classification Is made only If there Is a change In the business model for managing those 
assets. A change In the business model occurs when the Company either begins or ceases to perform an activity that ts significant to its 
operations. If the Company reclassifies financial assets, it applies the re-classification prospectively from the re-classification dale, which is the 
first day of the immediately next reporting period following the change In business model. The Company does not restate any previously 
recognised gains, losses (including impairment gains or losses) or Interest. 
Offsetting of financial instruments 
Financial assets and financial llabillties are offset, and the net amount ls reported in the balance sheet, if there is a currently enforceable legal 
right to offset the recognised amounts and there Is an Intention to settle on a net basis, to real!ze the assets and settle the liab1llt1es 
simultaneously. 

2.11 Income taxes 
Income tax assets and liabilities are measured at the amount expected to be recovered from or paid to the taxation authorities In accordance with 
the Income-tax Act, 1961 enacted in India. The tax rates and tax laws used to compute the amount are those that are enacted or substantively 
enacted, at the reporting date. 
Current income tax relating to items recognised outside the statement of proAt and loss Is recognised outside the statement or profit and loss 
(either in OCJ or In equlty In correlation to the underlying transaction). Management periodically evaluates whether ,t Is probable that the relevant 
taxation authority would accept an uncertain tax treatment that the Company has used or plan to use In Its Income tax filings, including wtth 
respect to situations In which applicable tax regulations are subject to interpretation and establishes prov,s1ons, where appropriate. The Company 
shall reflect the effect of uncertainty for each uncertain tax treatment by using either most likely method or expected value method, depending 
on which method predicts better resolution of the treatment. 
Deferred tax 

Deferred tax Is provided on temporary differences between the tax bases of assets and liabilities and their carrying amounts for financial reporting 
purposes at the reporting date. Deferred tax liabilities and assets are recognized for all taxable temporary differences and deductible temporary 
differences, except: 
• when the deferred tax liability or asset arises from the Initial recognition of goodwill or an asset or liability In a transaction that is not a buslnei 
combination and, at the time of the transaction, affects neither the accounting profit nor taxable profit or loss; and 
• In respect of taxable temporary differences and deductible temporary differences associated witl1 Investments in subsidiary and associate, whE 
the timing of the reversal of the temporary differences can be controlled and it ls probable that the temporary differences will not reverse in the 
foreseeable future. 

Deferred tax assets are recognised to the extent that It is probable that taxable profit will be available against which the deductible temporary 
differences, and the carry forward of unused tax credits and unused tax losses can be utilized. The carrying amount of deferred tax assets Is 
reviewed at each reporting date and reduced to the extent that It 1s no longer probable that sufficient taxable profit will be available to allow all or 
part of the deferred tax asset to be utilised. Unrecognised deferred tax assets are re-assessed at each reporting di:lte and are recognised to the 
extent it has become probable that future taxable profits will allow the deferred tax asset to be recovered. 

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are measured at the tax rates that are expected to apply In the year when the asset Is realised or the liability is 
settled, based on tax rates (and tax laws) that have been enacted or substantively enacted at the reporting date. Deferred tax relating to Items 
recognised outside the statement of profit and loss Is recognised outside tl,e statement of profit and toss (either in OCI or in equity In correlation 
to the underlying transaction). 

Deferred tax assets and deferred tax llabtlitles are offset If a legally enforceable right exists to set off current tax assets against current tax 
liabilities and the deferred taxes relate to the same taxable entity and the same taxation authority. 

2.12 Segment reporting 
Identification of segments 
An operating segment is a component of the Company that engages in business activities from which it may earn revenues and Incur expenses 
(Including revenues and expenses relating to transactions with other components of the Company), whose operating results are regularly 
reviewed by the Company's chief operating decision maker to make decisions about resources to be allocated to the segment and assess Its 
performance, and for which discrete rinanclal Information Is available. Operating segments of the Company are reported 1n a manner consistent 
with the internal reporting provided to the chief operating decision maker. 
The Company's operating businesses are organized and managed on a single segment considering the entire beauty and personal care products 
as one single operating segment. The analysis of geographical segments Is based on the location In which the customers are situated. 

Segment accounting policies 
The Company prepares its segment information In conformity with the accounting policies adopted for preparing and presenting the financial 
statements of the Company as a whole. 
The Board of directors is the Chief Operating Decision Maker (CODM) and monitors the operating results of Its business units separately for the 
purpose of making decisions about resource allocation and performance assessment. 

2.13 Earnings /(loss) per share 

Basic earnings per share are calculated by dividing the net profit or loss for the period attributable to equity shareholders (after deducting 
attributable taxes) by the weighted average number of equity shares outstanding during the period. For the purpose of calculating diluted 
earnings per share, the net profit or loss for the period attributable to equity shareholders and the weighted average number of shares 
outstanding during the period are adjusted for the effects of all dilutive potential equity shares. 

2.14 Provisions 

Provisions are recognized when the Company has a present obtlgatlon (legal or constructive) as a result of a past event, it Is probable that an 
outflow of resources embodying economic benefits will be required to settle the obligation and a reliable estimate can be made of the amount or 
the obligation. Wl1en the Company expects some or all of o provision to be reimbursed, the relmbursemenL is recognised as a separate asset, but 
only when the reimbursement is virtually certain. The expense relating to a provision Is presented In the statement of proAt and loss, net of any 
rel mbursement. 

e he time value of money Is material, provisions are discounted using a current pre-tax rate that reflects, wh,""""""'...., he 
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( All amounts In Rs. Lakhs, except as otherwise stated) 
2.15 Contingent liabilities 

A contingent llabillty 1s a possible obligation that arises from past events whose existence will be confirmed by the occurrence or non-occurrence 
of one or more uncerta,n future events beyond the control of the Company or a present obligation that Is not recognized because It ls not probable 
that an outflow or resources will be required to settle the obligation. A contingent llablllty also arises In extremely rare cases where there Is a 
liat>lllty that cannot be recognized because it cannot be measured reliably. The Company does not recognize a contingent hablllty but discloses its 
existence In the financial statements. 

2.16 Cash and cash equivalents 

Cash and cash equivalents in the balance sheet and cash flow statement comprise cash at banks and In hand and short-term deposits with an 
original maturity of three months or less, which are subJect to an Insignificant risk of changes in value. 

2.17 Significant accounting judgements, estimates and assumptions 

The preparation of the tTnanclal statements requires management to make Judgements, estimates and assumptions that affect the reported 
amounts or revenues, expenses, assets and liabilities, and the accompanying disclosures, and the disclosure of contingent liabilities. Uncertainty 
about these assumptions and estimates could result In outcomes that require a material adjustment to the carrying amount of assets or liabllitles 
<1rfected In rucure perio(ls. 
Other disclosures relating to the Company's exposure to risks and uncertainties Includes: 
• Caplt<1I management 
• Financial risk management ObJectlves and policies 
• Sensitivity analyses disclosures Notes 

The Company bases Its assumptions and estimates on parameters available when the financial statements are prepared. Existing circumstances 
and assumptions, if any, about future developments, however, may change due to market changes or circumstances arising that are beyond the 
control of the Company. Such changes are reflected In the asslimptions when they occur. The judgements, estimates and assumptions 
management has made which have the most significant effect on the amounts recognized In the financial statements are as below. 

Revenue from cciatcacts with custoru.� 
Sale of goods includes expected discounts and incentives that give rise to variable consideration. In estimating the variable consideration, the 
Company Is required to use either the expected value method or the most likely amount method based on which method better predicts the 
amount of consideralion to which it will be entitled. The Company uses the most likely amount methodology to determine the variable 
consideration. 
The Company determines and updates Its assessment of expected discounts and Incentives periodically and the accruals are adjusted accordingly. 
Estimates of expected discount and Incentives are sensitive to changes In circumstances and the Company's past experience regarding these 
amounts may not be representative of actual amounts in the future. 

Provision for expected credit loss on trade receivables 
The measurement of expected credit loss reflects ii probal:!iilty-weighted 0lltcome, the time value of money and the best available forward-looking 
information. The correiation between historical observed default rates, forecast economic conditions and expected credit loss Is a significant 
estimate. The amount of expected credit loss Is sensitive to changes in circumsta11ces and forecasted economic conditions. The Company•s 
h1stoncal credit loss experience and forecast of economic conditions may not be representative of the actual default In the future. 

Tax contingencies and provisions 
Significant management judgement is required to determine the amounts of tax contingencies and provisions, Including amount expected to be 
paid/recovered for uncertain tax positions and the amount of deferred tax assets that can be recognised, based upon the likely timing and the 
level of ruture taxable profits together with fulure tax planning strategies. 

Defined benefit plans 
The cost of the defined benefit plan and the present value of the obligation are determined using <1ctuarlal valuation. An actuarial valuation 
Involves various assumptions that may differ from actual developments In the future. These Include the determination of the discount rate, 
expected return, future salary Increases and mortality rates. Due to the complexities involved In the valuation and tts long·term nature, a defined 
benefit obligation Is highly sensitive to changes In these assumptions. All assumptions are reviewed at each reporting date. 
The parameter most subJect to change Is the discount rate. In determining the appropriate discount rate for plans operated In India, the 
management considers the Interest rates of government bonds where remaining maturity of such bond correspond to expected term of defined 
benefit obligation. The mortality rate rs based on publicly available mortality tables. Those mortality tables tend to change only at Inle, val in 
response to demographic changes. Future salary Increases are based on expected future Inflation rates. 

fuiLJt.a/ue measurement of financial iasJ:r.Ll.llli111l£ 
When the fair values of financial assets and financial llabllltles recorded In the financial statement cannot be measured based on quoted prices In 
active markets, their fair value Is measured using Internal valuation techniques. The Inputs to these models are taken from observable markets 
where possil:!le, but where this is not feasible, a degree of judgement is required In establishing fair values. Judgements Include considerations of 
Inputs such as liquidity risk, credit nsk and volatility. Changes In assumptions about these fclctors could affect the reported fair Value of financial 
instruments. 

2.18 Significant transactions/ new developments 
Tile Board of Directors of the Company, at its meeting held on April 19, 2024, had approve(l a Composite Scheme of Amalgamation and 
Arrangement between Just4Klds Services Private Limited ('J4K') and Compt!ny into and with Honasa Consumer Limited ('Honasa') subJect to the 
requisite statutory and regulatory approvals as 011 ll1e date of these financial statement. Company under Sections 230 to 232 and other applicable 
provisions of the Companies Act, 2013 filled the Scheme with the Hon'ble National Company Law Tribunal, New Delhi Bench, New Delhi ('NCLT, 
New Deihl') on April 28, 2024. 

The Scheme will enable the compames to realize greater synergies between their businesses, yield beneficial results and avail pooled resources In 
the interest of maxlmmng value to the shareholders and other stakel1olders. Necessary accounting effect of the Scheme will be given upon 
receipt of the requisite regulatory approvals. 
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3 Property, plant and equipment 

Computer & . 
. h I Office equipments

penp era s 

Gross block 

As at April 01, 2022 
Additions 

As at March 31, 2023 

As at April 01, 2023 
Addftions 

As at March 31, 2024 

Accumulated Depreciation 

As at April 01, 2022 
Charge for the period 

As at March 31, 2023 

As at April 01, 2023 
Charge for the period 
As at March 31, 2024 

Net book value 
As at March 31, 2023 
As at March 31, 2024 

4 Intangible assets 

Deemed Cost 

As at April 01, 2022 
Additions 
As at March 31, 2023 

As at April 01, 2023 
Additions 

As at March 31, 2024 

Amortisation 

As at April 01, 2022 
Amortisation 
As at March 31, 2023 

As at April 01, 2023 
Amortisation 
Disposals 
As at March 31, 2024 

Net book value 
As at March 31, 2023 
As at March 31, 2024 

2,57 0.23 
2.20 

4.77 0.23 

4.77 0.23 

4.77 0.23 

1.62 0.08 
1.39 0.07 

3.01 0.15 

3.01 0.15 
1.16 0.06 

4.17 0.21 

1.76 0.08 
0.60 0.02 

Plant and 
machinery 

0.47 

0.47 

0.47 

0.47 

0.09 
0.07 

0.16 

0.16 
0.06 

0.22 

0.32 
0.25 

Patent & 
Trademarks 

0.04 

0.04 

0.04 

0.04 

0.04 

0.04 

0.04 

Total 

3.27 
2.20 

5.47 

5.47 

5.47 

1.79 
1.53 

3.32 

3.32 
1.28 

4.60 

2.15 
0.87 

Total intangible 
assets 

0.04 

0.04 

0.04 

0.04 

0.04 

0.04 

0.04 
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5 lnvestments 
Current 
(Camed at Fair Value through Profit and Loss Accounr) 

Mutual Funds 
Adltya Blrla Sun Life OverniQht Fund 

Aggregate book value of quoted Investment 
Aggregate market value of quoted Investment 

6 Other financial assets 

Current 
Securfty deposits 
fnterest accrued on fixed deposit 

7 Inventories 

(valued at lower of cosr and net realizable value) 

Finished goods 

8 Trade receivables 

Curled at amortised cost 

Trade receivables 

As at March 31 2024 

Pc1rticular 0-6 months 

Undisputed Trade Receivables - considered qood 
Undisputed Trade Receivables - which have slgnlffcant 
Increase In credit risk 
Undisouted Trdde recelvaole - credit Imoa1red 
Disputed Trade receivables - considered qood 
Disputed Tl"c!lde ,ecelv,:1bles - which have slgniOcant increase 
In credit risk 
Disputed Trade receivables - credit Impaired 
Total 

As at March 31 2023 

1,245.88 

1 245.88 

As at 
March 31, 2024 

Units 

30 944.03 
30 944,03 

6 month!. - l y�ar 

6.76 

6.76 

Particular 0-6 months 6 months - l year 

Undisputed Trade Receivables - considered aood 
Undisputed Trade Receivables - which have significant 
Increase In credit risk 
Undisputed Trade receivable - credit lmoafred 
Disputed Trade receivables - considered QOOd 
Disputed Trade receivables - which have significant increase 
in credit risk 
Dlsm1ted Trade receivables - credit Impaired 
Total 

345.07 

345.07 

-There are no non-current trade receivables as on March 31. 2024 (March 31. 2023 : Nill. 

As at As at As at 
March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023 March 31, 2023 

Amount Units Amount 

400.74 
400.74 

400.74 
400.74 

As at As at 
March 31, 2024 March 31. 2023 

2.47 4.03 
0,09 
2.56 4,03 

As at As at 
March 31

1 
2024 March 31, 2023 
623.39 695.35 

623 39 695.35 

As at As at 

March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023 
l 252.64 345.07 

1 252.64 345.07 

t-3 ye;,r5 Moro tho1n 3 years Tot0I 

1,252.64 

1 252.64 

1-3 years More than 3 years Total 

345.07 

345.07 

- No trade or other receivable are due from directors or other officers of the company either severally or jointly with any other person. Nor any trade or other receivable 
are due trom firms or private companies respectively In which any director Is a partner, a director ar a member. 
- Trade receivables are non-Interest bearing and are generally on terms of 45-60 days. 

9 Cash and cash equivalents 

Cash and cash eoulvalents 
Qlsh In hand 
Balance with banks 
- on c;urrf;lnt accounts 

For the purpose or the statement of cash flows, cash Dnd cash equ1valent,g compr(se the following: 
Cash In hand 
Balance with banks 
- on current accounts 
Less - Bank overdraft 

10 Other bank balances 

Deposits with remalnlnq maturity of more than twelve months 

11 Other Assets 

Current 
Advance to employees 
Prepaid expenses 
Advance to !:UOPlicrs 
Other receivables 
Balance with governrnent authorities 

A.sat 
March 31, 2024 

2.90 

267.48 
270.38 

2.90 

267.48 

270.38 

As at 
March 31, 2024 

28.20 

28.20 

As at 
March 31, 2024 

3.54 
31.93 
31.43 
29.97 

96.87 

As at 
March 31

1 
2023 

0.14 

77.19 
77.33 

0.14 

77.19 

77.33 

AS at 
March 31, 2023 

As at 

March 31, 2023 

0.00 
1.50 

57.•S 

206.64 
265.59 
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12 Equity Share Capital 

i) Authorised share capital 

Eaulty share capital of Rs. 10 each 

As at Aorll 01, 2022 
Increase durina the vear 
As at March 31, 2023 
Increase durino the vear 
As at March 31, 2024 

ercfccence share caaital of Rs, 10 ench 

As at Aoril 01. 2022 
Increase durlno the vear 
As at March 31. 2023 
Increase durino the vear 
As at March 31, 2024 

iil Issued, subscribed and fullv oaid uo Eauitv share caoital 

Eauitv 5hare capital of Rs 10 each, futlv paid uo 

As at Aoril O 1, 2022 
Issued durlna the vear 
As at March 31, 2023 
Issued durlna the oeriod 
As at March 31, 2024 

Preference share caoita! of Rs, 10 each, fullv oaid uo 

As at Aoril 01. 2022 
Issued durlna the vear 
As at Marsch 31, 2023 
Issued durino the oeriod 
As at March 31, 2024 

(iii) Terms./riQhts attached to shares 

Numbers 

ll,65,000 

11,65,000 

11,65,000 

8.86,000 

8,86,000 

8
1
86,000 

Num bers 

10,00,045 

10 00 045 

3,73,306 
5 11 797 
a as 103 

8
1
85

1
103 

Amount 

116.50 

116,50 

116.50 

88.60 

88.60 

88.60 

Amount 

t00.00 

100.00 

100.00 

88.S1 

88.51 

Terms of Equity shares - The Company has only one class of equity shares having a par v alue of Rs.10 per share. Each holder of equity shares Is entitled to one vote 
per share. 
Terms of Preference shares - The compulsory convertible preference shares (CCPS) are raised as per the original subscription cum shareholdl!rs agreement dated 
18th April, 2019, supplemental agreeement dated 06th June, 2019 and amendment agreement thereof. Further, the CCPS shall bear cumulative dividend equal to 
0.001% per annum of the face value or as per terms and conditions In the aforesaid agreements and amendment thereof. The preJere:nce shares are subject to 
compulsory conversion Into equity. 

(ivl Deti>ils of shareholdinq more than SO/o shares in the Comoanv: 

Eauitv Share caoital of Rs 10/- each fullv oaid 
Honasa Consumer Limited 

Preference shares of Rs 100/- each fully paid 
Honasa Consumer Umlted 

(vl Details of shares held bv promoters: 

Eauit·v shares of Rs 10 each, rullv uaid 

As at March 31 2024 

Promoter Name 

Honasa Consumer Limited 

As a March 31 2023 

Dr. Ashit Sheth 
Aneesh Sheth 

Promoter Name 

No. of shares at 
the beginning of 

the year 
10 00 045 

No. of shares at 
the beginning of 

the year 
2.00.000 
7.92.725 

As at March 31, 2024 

10 00 045 100% 
10,00,045 100% 

8,85.103 JOO% 
8.85.103 1000/o 

Change during No. of shares at 
the year the end of the year 

10.00.045 

Change during No. of shares at 
the year the end of the year 

12.00,000) 
/7.92.725) 

As at March 31. 2023 

10 00 045 
10.00.04s 

8,8S, 103 
8.ss.103 

O/o of total 
shares 

100% 

0/o of total 
share!. 

0% 
0% 

100% 
1.00% 

J.00% 
1000/o 

0/o change during 
the year 

0% 

0/o change during 
the year 

20% 
80% 



Fusion Cosmeceutlc:s Private Llmltfld 
CIN: U24230DL2003PTC423473 
Not .. to the Financial Statements for the yc;,r ended March 31, 2024 
(All amounts Tn Rs. Lakhs, except as otherwise stated) 

13A Instrumant entirelv in the nature of eauitv 

Comoulsorllv Convertible Preference ShareslCCPSl 

As at Aoril 01. 2022 
Ad1u<tment lor fair Valuation on the date of conv.,rs,on into Eoultv 
Issued dunno the vear 
As at March 31. 2023 
lldtustmen1 for Fair Valuation on the dat" of conversion Into Eoultv 
Issued durlno the vear 
As at March 31. 2024 

13B Other equity 

Securities premium 
Retained urnlngs 

a) Secu,-ities premium 
Opening Balance 
Add: Additions durlno the vear 
Closing balance 

b) Retained earnings 
Opening Balance 
Add: ProfiV(loss) ror the year 
Add: Other comprehensive Income/ (loss) 
Closing balance 

a) Securities premh . .1m: 

Number 

3.73.306 

5,11.797 
8.85.103 

8 85 l.03 

As at 
Mar·Ch 31, 2024 

1,232.22 
(3,128.17) 

[1,695.95} 

1,232.22 

1,232.22 

(2,729.85) 
(397 91) 

(0.41) 
(3,128.17) 

Amount 

37.33 
408.67 
51.18 

497.18 

497.18 

As at 
March 31, 2023 

1.232.22 
(2,729.65) 

11,497.63} 

283.40 
948,82 

1,232.22 

(1,201.73) 
(1,530.55) 

2.44 
(21729.SS) 

Securities premium account has been created consequent to Issue of shares at premium. The reserve can be utlhsed In accordance with the prov1s1ons of the 
Companies Act 2013. 

b) Retained earnings: 
Ret21fned ea, nlngs comprises of prior and current period's and year·s undistributed earnings/ accumulated losses after tax. 



Fusion Cosmece.utics Pr1vate Limited 
CIN:U24230DL.2003PTC423473 
Notes to the Financial Statements for the year ended March 31, 2024 
(All amounts in Rs. Lakhs, excep( as otherwise stated) 

14 Borrowings 

Non Current 
Carrfed at �mortised cost 
Unsecured 
Honasa Consumer Umrted 

15 Other Financial liabilities 

Current 
Employee benefits payable 

16 Provisions 

Non-current 
Provision for oratultv 

Current 
Provision for oratultv 
Provision for leave benefits 
Other orovlslons 

17 Other liabilities 

Current 
Statutory dues payable 
Advcmce from cus'lomers 
Other payables 

18 Trade payables 

Carried at amortised cost 

Total outstandlnci due!» of micro enterprises ;;tnd small enterprises 
Total outstandlna dues o'f creditors other than mlcro enterorlses and small enterurlses 

There are no non-current trade payables as on March 31, 2024 (March 31, 2023: Nil). 

As at 
March 31, 2024 

1,350.00 
1 350.00 

As at 
March 31, 2024 

As at 
March 31, 2024 

8.00 
8.00 

0.34 
5.72 

1,548.62 
1 554.68 

A.sat 
March 31, 2024 

94.17 
4.26 
0.23 

98.65 

As a·t 
March 31, 2024 

300,50 
662.59 

963.09 

As at 
March 31, 2023 

800.00 
800.00 

As at 
March 31, 2023 

0.07 
0.07 

As at 
March 31, 2023 

4.69 
4.69 

0.19 
4.73 

668.28 
673.20 

As at 
March 31, 20 23 

24.64 
2.93 

40,00 
67.57 

Aliat 
March 31, 2023 

275.94 
468.53 

744.47 

The Company has amounts due to Micro and Small Enterprises under The Micro, Small and Medium Enterprises Development Act, 2006 (MSMED Act) as at March 
31, 2024. The details In respect of such dues are as follows: 
Particular 

(I) The pr1nc1oa1 amount and the Interest due thereon remalnlnq unpaid to anv suooller as al t11e end or each vear: 
Prlncioal amount due to micro and small enterorises 
Interest due on the above 

Total 
(ii) The arnount of Interest paid by the buyer In terms of Section 16 of the MSMEO Act, 2006 along with the amounts 
of the oavment made to the suppller beyond the appointed day during each accounting year 
(Iii) The amount of Interest due and payable for the oerlod of delay In making payment (which has been pa,d but 
beyond appointed day during the period) but without adding the Interest specified under the MSMED Act, 2006 
(iv) The amount or Interest accrued and remaining unpaid at the end of each accountlng year 
(v) The amount of further lnterc.st remaining due and payable even ,., the succeedtng year, until such date when the 
Interest dues as above are actually paid to the small enterprise fo.r the purpose of d1sallowance as a deductible 
expenditure under Section 23 of the MSMED Act, 2006 

As at 
March 31, 2024 

300.50 

300,50 

As at 
March 31, 2023 

275.94 

The above disclosures are provided by the Company based on the Information available with the Company In respect of the registration status of Its vendors / 
suppliers. 
(a) Tr.ide payables are non-Interest bearinQ and are Qenerally settled up to 60 days 
(b) For explanations on the Company's credit risk mcrnclQernenl p,ocesses, refer to note 34 
(c) Trade payables (outstanding for following periods from the dale or transaction) ageing schedule: 

Up to 6 6 months to 1 1-3 years More than Total months year 3 years 
As at March 31. 2024 
(i) MSME 300.50 300.50 
(II) Others 644.33 18,26 662..59 
(111) Olsputed dues - MSMt 
(Iv) 01s�uted dues - Others 
Total 944.83 18.26 963.09 

Up to 6 6 months to 1 
1·3 years More than 

Total months ear 3 ears 
As at March 31, 2023 
(I) MSME 7.75.92 0.02 275.94 
(ii) Others 460,50 8.03 0,00 468.53 
(Ill) Disputed dues - MSME 
(Iv) Dlseuted dues - Others 
Total 736.42 8.05 0.00 744.47 



Fusion Cosmeceutics Private Limited 
CIN:U24230DL2003PTC423473 
Notes to the Financial Statements for the year ended March 31, 2024 
(All amounts ifl Rs. Lakhs, except as otherwrse stated) 

19 Revenue from operations 

Sale of products 
Revenue from contract with customers 

S�le of products <net of Goods and service Tax) 
Traded goods 

19.1 Details of disaggregation of revenue 
The Company derives Its major revenue from trading of skin c;are products. 

19.2 Contract balances 

a) Contract Assets 
Trade receivables 
b) Contract Liabilities 
Adv a nee from customers 

19.3 Timing or revenue recognition 

Goods transferred at a point In time 
Revenue from contract with customers 

Year ended 
March 31, 2024 

11 223.52 
11,223.52 

11,223.52 
11,223.52 

AS at 
March 31, 2024 

1,252.64 

4.26 

Year ended 
March 31, 2024 

11,223.52 
11,223.52 

19.4 Reconciling the amount of revenue recognised in the statement of profit and loss with the contracted price 

Revenue as per contracted price 
Adjustments 
Claims and Rebates 
Provision for Sales Return 
Revenue from contract with customers 

19.5 Performance obligations and remaining performance obligations: 

Year ended 
March 31, 2024 

12,142.17 

(918.65) 

11,223.52 

Year ended 
March 31, 2023 

2,705.37 
2,705.37 

2,705.37 
2,705.37 

As at 
March 31, 2023 

345.07 

2.93 

Year ended 
March 31, 2023 

2,705.37 
2,705.37 

Year ended 
March 31, 2023 

2,976.03 

(257.66) 
(13.00) 

2,705.37 

The remaining performance obligation disclosure provides the aggregate amount of the transaction price yet to be recognized as at the end of 
the reporting period and an explanation as to when the Company expects to recognize these amounts In revenue. Applying the practical 
expedient as given In Ind AS 115, the Company has not disclosed the remaining perfo.rmance obligation related disclosures for contracts that 
have original expected duration of one year or lesser. 

20 Other income 
Year ended Year ended 

Interest Income on: 
March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023 

Fixed deposit l.42 0.50 
Income tax reruncl 0.39 0.ll 

Staff loan 0.03 
Loan • Written Off 6.24 
Balances Writeoff 9.88 
Fair value oaln on inveslments measured at FVTPL 0.74 
Forelan exchanae fluctuation aaln/ (loss\ [net) (0.0l) 

Gain on sale of investments measured at FVTPL 0.49 
Others 2.48 0.41 

15.39 7.29 

21 Cost of raw materials consumed 

Year ended Year ended 
March 31, 2024 March 311 2023 

Open,ng stock 41.36 
Add: Packing Moterlal 103.37 
Add: Direct expenses 72.36 

Less: Closing stock 
217.09 

22 Purchases of traded goods Year ended Year ended 
March 31, 2024 March 311 2023 

Purchases (lfilded goods) 3,288.23 1,316.65 
3,288.23 1,316.65 



Fusion Cosmeceutlcs Private Limited 
CIN:U24230DL2003PTC423473 
Notes to the Financial Statements for the year ended March 31, 2024 
(All amounrs In Rs. Lakhs, except as otherwise stilted) 

23 Changes In inventories of traded goods 

Inventories at the beginning of the period 
Finished goods 
Traded goods 

Inventories at the end of the period 
Finished goods 

Decrease/ (increase) in inventories 

24 Employee benefits expenses 

Salaries, wages and bonus 
Contribution to Provident & Other Funds 
Staff welfare expenses 
Provision (or gratuity (Refer note• 31) 
Provision for leave encashment 

25 Depreciation expenses 

Depredation of property, plant and eQuipment 
Amortis&tio,, of Intangible as-sets-

26 Finance costs 

Interest on 

Bank overdraft 
Loan 
Others 

Bank charges 

Year ended Year ended 
March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023 

695.35 82.72 

19,12 

695.35 101.83 

623.39 695.35 

623.39 69S.JS 

71.95 (593.52) 

Year ended Year ended 
March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023 

307.96 121.11 

4.81 4.43 
0.86 1.85 

3.63 3.42 
0.99 2.70 

318.25 133.51 

Year ended Year ended 
March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023 

l.28 l.53 

0.04 
1.32 1.53 

Year ended Year ended 
March 31. 2024 March 31. 2023 

0.94 

99.95 20.19 

1.59 

0.63 0.23 

100.58 23.05 



Fusion Cosmeceutics Private Limited 
CIN:U242300L2003PTC423473 
Notes to the Financial Statements for the year ended March 31, 2024 
(All amounts In Rs. Lakhs, except as otherwise stated) 

27 Other expenses 

Advertisement expense 
Packaging material 
Professional & legal fees (Refer note (I) below) 
Web development expenses 
Courier, clearing & forwarding charges 
Travelling and conveyance expenses 
Commission charges 
Warehousing expenses 
Communication costs 
Printing & Stationery 
Repairs & maintenance 
Rent 
Rates & taxes 
Provision for Bad and Doubtful Debts 
Provision for Slow/Non moving inventory 
Product Destruct1011 charges 
Bad debts 
Equalisation Levy 
Business Support Services 
Telephone & Internet expenses 
Insurance expenses 
R&D expense 
Membership Fees 
Miscellaneous expenses 

(f) Payment to auditors (excluding Goods and Service tax) 

Statutory Audit fee 
Tax Audit 
Other Services 
Reimbursement of exoenses 

28 Earnings per share 

The following reflects the profit and share data used In the basic and diluted EPS computations: 

Net orofit/(loss) for calculation of basic EPS 
r,Jet orofit/(loss\ for calculation of diluted EPS 

Weiohted averaoe number of eouitv shares in calculatino basic EPS 
Adiustments for effect of dilution: 
Welohted averaoe number of eouitv shares In calculatlno diluted EPS 

Earnlno oer Share 
Bas,c 
Diluted 

Year ended 
March 31, 2024 

6,556.97 
169.83 
42.10 
41.84 

542.63 
4.26 

J9.39 
379.66 

0.51 
0.94 
8.60 
7. 12 

17.12 
5.50 

42.42 
0.54 
1.00 
2.75 
0.43 
0.20 
5.49 
5.11 
0.33 
1.76 

7,8S6.49 

14.25 
1.00 
0.86 
0.35 

16.45 

Year ended 
March 31, 2024 

(398,32) 
(398.32) 

18,8S,148 

18,85,148 

(21.13) 
(21.13) 

Year ended 
March 31, 2023 

2,475.08 

145.24 
11.38 

196.62 
6.88 
5.47 

96.00 

2.83 
tS.75 

1.36 

0.17 

0.59 

O.Jl 

0.38 

2.96 
2,961.02 

4.40 
1.00 

5.40 

Year ended 
March 31, 2023 

(1,528.12) 
(1,528.12) 

18,85,148 

18,85,148 

(81.06) 
(Bl.06) 



Fusion Cosmcceutics Private Limited 
CIN: U24230DL2003PTC423473 
Notes to the Financial Statements for the year ended March 31, 2024 
(All amounts In Rs. LakhS, except as otherwise stated) 

29 Tax expense (net) 
The major components of Income tax expense for the perlocl endecl March 31, 2024 and March 31, 2023 are: 

al Statement of Profit and Loss 
Profit or loss section 

Current income tax: 
Current tax 
Deferred tax: 
RelatinQ to origination and reversal of temoorarv differences 
Reversal or Deferred tax created earlier 
Total tax expense 

bl Other comprehensive income/Closs) 

Deferred tax related to Items recognised In OCI dunng the period: 

Net loss / (gain) on remeasurements of defined benefit plans 
Tax (income) / expense charged to OCI 

Year ended 
March 31, 2024 

Year ended 
March 31, 2024 

Reconclllotlon of tax expense and the accounting profit multiplied by India's domestic tax rate for March 31, 2024 and March 31, 2023; 

Accountino orofit/ /loss) before income tax 
AP0llcable ta,c rate In India 
Cornouted tax c:harae on accountina orofit 
DeJfered tax not recoqnlsed 
Other tax effects 
Income tax expense reported In the statement of profit and loss 

cl Deferred tax relates to the following: 

Year ended 
March 31, 2024 

(397.91) 
25.17% 

(100.15) 
100.15 

Year ended 
March 31, 2023 

183.89 
183.89 

Year ended 
March 31, 2023 

Year ended 
March 31, 2023 

(1,346.67) 
25.17% 

(338.96) 
338.96 

(183.89) 
(183,89) 

The Company has a net deferred tax assets with respect to certain timing differences. These have not been recognised as the recognition criteria have nol 
been met In accordance with the accounting policy followed by the Company. 

Deferred Tax Asset 
Movement on account of WDV 
Difference due to allowance of expenses on payment 
Brought forward losses and unabsorbed depreciation 

Less: Deferred Tax not recognised 

Net Deferred tax 

Notes: 

As at 
March 31 2024 

As at 
March 31 2023 

0.29 
2.42 

335.98 
338.69 

(338,69) 

(I) The Company offsets tax assets and llabllltles If and only If It has a legally enforceable right to set off current tax assets ancl current tax llabilltles and the 
deferred tax assets and deferred ta)( liabilities relate to income taxes levied by the same tax authority, 

dl Reconciliation of deferred tax assets (net): 

Opening balance 
Tax income/(expense) during the period 
• recognised In statement of profit and loss 

Closing balance 

e) Movement for the year ended March 31, 2024 

Deferred Tax Asset 
Movement on account of WDV 
Difference clue to allowance of expenses on payment 
Brought forward losses and unabsorbed depreciation 
Total 
Net Deferred tax 

f) Movement for the year ended March 31, 2023 

Deferred Tax Asset 
Movement on account or WDV 
Difference due to allowance or expenses on payment 
Brought forward losses and unabsorbed depreciation 
Total 
Net Deferred tax 

April 01, 2023 

April 01, 2022 

0.34 
2.30 

181.25 
183.89 

(183.89) 

Recognised in 
profit or loss 

Recognised In 
profit or •oss 

(0.34) 
(2.30) 

(181.25) 
(183.89) 

183.89 

As at 
March 31 2024 

Recognised in 
OCI 

Recognised In 
OCI 

As at 
March 31 2023 

183.89 

(183.89) 

March 31, 2024 

March 31, 2023 



Fusion Cosmeceutics Private Limited 
CIN: U24230DL2003PTC423473 

Notes to the Financial Statements for the year ended March 31, 2024 
(All amounts in Rs. Lakhs, except as otherwise stated) 

30 Related party disclosures 

a) Names of related oarties and descriotion of relationshios: 
Related party where control exists 

Holding Company 

Fellow Subsidiaries 

Key management personnel (KMP) 

Dr. Ashit Sheth is Partner 

Shareholder Is Interested party 

b) Transactions with related parties 

Hon<1S<1 Consumer Limited 

Just4kids Services Private Limited (w.e.f. Aorll 1, 2022) 
Bblunt Soratt Hair DresslnQ Private Limited (w.e.f. March 16, 2022) 
Bhabani Blunt Hair Dressino Private Limited (w.e.f. March 16, 20221 

Master Zalrus (w.e.f July 21, 2023) 
Raman Preet Sohl (w.e.f July 15, 2022) 
Varun Alagh (w.e.f July 7, 2022) 
Ghazal Alagh (w.e.f July 4, 2023) 
Dr. Ashit Sheth (ti/I Apr/I 7

1 
2022) 

Anees/7 Sheth (till December 9, 2022) 

Jay Mukund Thakker (till April 7, 2022) 

Dr. Sheth's Skin & Hair Clinics LLP (till Apnl 7, 2022) 
Cheryl Laboratories Private Limited 

Transactions with related parties are made on terms equivalent to those that prevail In arm's length transactions. Outstanding balances at the 
period-end ;,re unsecured and Interest free and settlement occurs In cash. Tl1ere have been no guarantees provided or received ror any 
related party receivables or payables. For the year ended March 3!, 2024 and March 31, 2023, the Company has not recorded any 
Impairment of receivables relating to amounts owed by related parties. This assessment ,s undertak.en each fina11oal year through ex;imlning 
the financial position of the related party and the market In which the related party operates. There are no commitments with related parties. 

Nature of transactions 

Sale of products c netl 
Dr. Sheth's Skin & Hair Clinics LLP 

Reimbursement of exoenses 
Aneesh Sheth 

Cross Charge 
Honasa Consumer Limited 

Interest expenses 
Honasa Consumer Limited 

Finished goods 
Cheryl Laboratories Private Limited 

Unsecured Loans Received 
Honasa Consumer Limited 

Labour charges 
Cheryl Laboratories Private Limited 

Remuneration paid 
Aneesh Sheth 

Raw material 
Cheryl Laboratories Private Limited 

Packing Material 
Cheryl Laboratories Private limited 

Purchase of Services 
Just41<ids Services Private Limited 

Loan Paid 
Honasa Consumer Limlte(l 
Dr Ashlth Sheth 
Aneesh Sheth 
Dr. Sheth's Skin & Harr Clinics LLP 

Year ended 
March 31, 2024 

200.79 
200.79 

99.95 
99.95 

750.00 
750.00 

200.00 

200.00 

Year ended 
March 31 2023 

7.33 
7.33 

1.06 
1.06 

19.96 
19.96 

151.38 
151.38 

800.00 
800.00 

7.92 
7.92 

27.63 
27.63 

1.91 
1.91 

1.07 
1.07 

5.25 
5.25 

5.00 
1.24 

57.41 
63.65 



30 Related party disclosures (Continue) 
b) Transactions with related parties (Continue) 

The followlno table provides the closlno balances of related oartles for the relevant flnanclal year: 

Unsecured Loans 
Honasa Consumer Limited 

Interest payable 
Honasa Consumer Limited 

Remuneration payable 
Aneesh Sheth 

Trade receivables 
Dr. Sheth's Skin & Hair Clinics LLP 

Trade payables 
Cheryl Laboratories Private Limited 
Just4k1ds Services Pnvate Limited 

Expense payable 
Honasa Consumer Limited 
Aneesh Sheth 

As at 
March 31, 2024 

1 350.00 

1 350.00 

200.79 

200.79 

As at 
March 31, 2023 

800.00 
800.00 

0.97 

0.97 

0.34 

0.34 

84.03 

2.37 

86.40 

0.53 

0.53 



Fusion Cosmeceutlcs Private Limited 
CIN:U24230DL2003PTC423473 
Notes to the Financial Statements for the year ended March 31, 2024 
(All amo.unts in Rs. /.JJkhs, except as otherwise stated) 

31 Employee benefits plan 
(I) Defined contribution plans• Provident Fund, ESI and labour welfare fund 
The Company makes Provident Fund and Employee State insurance Scheme contributions which are defined contribution plans, ror qualifying employees. Under 
the Schemes, the Company Is reQulred to contribute a specified percentage of the payroll costs to fund the benefits. During the period, the Company recognised 
Rs. 4.8J. lakhs (March Jl, 2023: 2.29 lakhs) towards such contribution in the statement of profit and loss. The contributions payable to these plans by the 
Company are at rates specified In the rules of the schemes. 

(ii) Defined benefit plans (unfunded): 
The Company has a defined benefit gratuity plan. Every employee who has completed five years or more of service gets a gratuity on departure at 15 days basic 
salary (last drawn salary) for each completed year of service. The plan ls unfunded 
Gratuity is a denned benent plan and company Is exposed to the rollowinq risks: 

Interest risk Tlie plan exposes the Company to the risk or fall In Interest rates. A tall In Interest rates will result In an Increase In the ultimate 
cost of providing the above benefit and will thus result In an Increase In the value of the liability. 

LIQuidlty risk This Is the risk that the Company fs not able to meet the short-term gratuity payouts. This may arise due to non availabllty of 
enough cash / cash equivalent to meet the l1ab1llt1es or holding of Illiquid assets not being sold in time. 

Salary escalation risk The present value of the denned benefit plan Is calculated with the assumption of salary Increase rate of plan participants In future. 
Deviation In the rate of Increase of salary In future for plan participants from the rate or Increase In salary used to determine the 
present value of obligation will have a bearlno on the plan's llablltv. 

Demographic risk The Company has used certain mortality a11d attrition assumptions rn valuation of the llablllty. The Company Is exposed to the risk 
or actual experience turning out to be worse compared to the assumptions made. 

Regulatory risk Gratuity benefit is paid In accordance with the requirements of the Payment of Gratuity Act, l 972 (as amended from time to time). 

Current 
Non-1Current 

There Is a risk or change ,n regulations requiring higher gratuity payouts. 

As at 
March 311 2024 

0.34 
8.00 

8.34 

As at 
March 31, 2023 

0.19 
4.69 

4.88 

The follo·wing table sets out movement in defined benefits liability and the amount recog·nised in the financial statements: 

Chanaes in the deCined benefit obligation and fair value of Plan assets 

Defined benefit obliaation (Al 
Openln11 balance 
Current service cost 
Interest cost on benefit oblloat1on 
Net actuarial (oainl/loss recoonlzcd durlno the oeriod 

Total amount re1Cognised in statement of profit and loss 
Benefits paid 
Closing balance 

Remeasurement 
Actuarial changes arising from changes in demographic assumptlons 
Actuarial changes arising from changes In financial assumptions 
Actuarial changes arising frorn changes in experience adjustments 
Total amount recognised in other com prehensive income 

Fair value of plan a.ssets CB l 

As at 
March 31, 2024 

4.88 
3.27 
0.35 
0.4! 

8.93 
3.63 
0.59 

8.34 

0.22 
0.19 
0.41 

As at 
March 31, 2023 

4.94 
2.02 
0.37 

(2.44) 
4.88 
2.38 

4.88 

(0.13) 
(2.31) 

(2.44) 

The principal assumptions used in determining gratu1ty benefit obligations for the company's plans are shown below: 

Discount rate 
Future salarv Increases 
Normal retirement aoe 
Attrition/ withdrawal (oer annum) 
Mortality 

As at As at 
March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023 

7.25% 7.40% 
8.00% 8% 

60 Year5 60 Years 
5.00% 5.00% 

Indian Assured Lives Mortallty(2012-14) 

A quantitative sensitivity analysis for signincant assumptions are as shown below: 

Dlscou nt rate 
Future salary increase 
Attrition rate sensitivity 

Sensitivity Level 

+ 1% / - 1% 

+ 1% / - 1% 
+1%/-1%

As at March 31, 2024 As at March 31, 2023 
Defined bene.fit obligation on increase / decrease in assumptions 

Increase Decrease Increase Decrease 
7.01 

10.01 
8.22 

10.04 
7.01 
8-48 

4.14 
5.81 
4.83 

5.83 
4.14 
4.95 

The above sensitivity an.ilysls Is based on a change In an assumption while holding all other assumptions constant. In practice, this 1s unlikely to occur, and 
changes In some of the assumptions may be correlated. When calculating the sensitivity of the defined benefit obligation to significant actuarial assumptions the 
same method (present value of the defined benefit obligation calculated with the projected unit credit method at the end of the reporting period) has been 
applied as when calculating the defined benefit liability recognised In the balance sheet. 

The following payments are expected cash flows t.o the defined benefit plan in future years: 

Within the next 12 months 
Between 2 and S yea rs 
Beyond 5 years 

32 Segment Information 

As at 
March 31, 2024 

0.34 
0.91 
0.71 

As at 
MQrch 31, 2023 

0.19 
0.55 
0.43 

The Company reports this standalone financial staremenL along with the consolidated r,nanclal statements. In accordance with Ind AS 108, Operating Segments...L 
the Company has disclosed the segment lnfom1atlon In lhe consolidated nnancial statements. 
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33 Financial instruments- accounting classification and fair value measurement 
I) The carrying value of financial assets by categories is as follows: 

Measured at fair- value through statement of profit and loss (FVTPL) 
Investment 
Total financial assets measured at FVTPL 

Measured at amortised cost 
Trade receivables 
cash and cash e.Qu1valents 
Other bank balances 
Qt.her financial assets 
Total financial assets mea5ured at amortised cost 

Total financial assets 

Ii) The carrying value of financial liabilities by categories is as follows: 

Measured at fair value through statement of profit and loss (FVTPL) 
Borrowings 
Total financial liabilities ,neasured at FVTPL 

Measured at amortised cost 
Tra<fe payables 
Other f inancial llabilltles 
Total financial liabilities measured at amortised cost 

Total financial liabilities 

Notes: 

As at As at 
Morch 31. 2021 March 31. 2023 

400.74 
400.74 

l,2S2.64 345.0? 
270.38 77.33 

28.20 
2.56 4.03 

1,553.78 426.43 

1,954.52 426.43 

As at As at 
March 31, 2024 March 31. 2023 

1,350.00 800,00 
1,350.00 800.00 

963.09 744.47 
0.07 

963.09 744.54 

2,313.09 1,544.54 

The foir value of the financial assets and liabilities Is Included at the amount at which the Instrument could be exchanged In a current transaction between Willing parties, 
other than in a forced or llquldat,on sale. 
The Company catcqorlses fair value measurements usina ic\ fair value hierarchy that Is dependent on the valuatlon lnouts used as follows: 
a. Leve-I 1 - Quoted orlc.es (unadfusted) In an active market for ldentleal assets or liabllltles that the Company can as$ess at the measurement date 
b. Level 2 • Inputs other than Quoted prices inclu<fed In Level I that are observable for the asset or liability, either directly or Indirectly 
c. Level 3 - Unobservable Inputs for the assets or llabllltles. 
Fair value measurements that use Inputs of different hierarchy revels are categorized In Its entirety In the same level or the fair value hierarchy as the lowest level Input 
that Is significant ro the entire management. 
The management assessed that cash and cash equivalent, trade receivables, trade payables, other financial assets-others (current), other financial liabJllty (current), 
lease hab•llt,es (OJrrent) and I0,rns to employees approximates their fair value largely <fue to short-term maturities of these Instruments. 
The Optlonally Convertible Redeemable Preference Shares held by lnvestorS Is classified as llablllty and carried at fair value through proflt and loss. The Company has 
valued the Instrument by using the Income approach 
The fulr value of remaining flnc1nclal instruments are determined on transactlon date based on dtscounted cash flows calculated using lending / borrowing rate. 
Subsequently, these are carried at amortized cost. There IS no significant change In fair value of such llal;>ilities and assets. 

34 Financial risk manaaement 
Objective and poli cies 
The Company's principal financial liabilities comprise of borrowings, lease obligation, trade and other payables. The main purpose of these finandal llabllltles Is to nnance 
u,e ComPiJny's operat1ons. The Company's prlnc.ipal financial assets Include �ecurity deposits:, Investments, trade and other receivables and cash and cash equivalents 
that is deri11ed dlrectl11 from lt.s ooeratlons. 

The Company's activities exposes It to market risk, credit risk and liquidity risk. The Company's risk management ,s carried out by the management under the policies 
approved by the Board of Directors lhat help In ldentmcatlon, measurement, mltlgatlon and reporting all risks associated with the act,v,tles of the Company. These risks 
are Identified on a continuous basis and assessed for the Impact on the financial performance. It Is the Company's policy that no trading In derivatives for speculative 
purposes will be undertaken. The Board of Directors reviews and agrees pollcies for managing each or these risks, which are summarised below. 

a) Market risk 
Market risk is the risk that the fair value of future cash flows of a financial Instrument will ftuctuate because of changes In market prices, Market risk comprises three 
types of risk: Interest rate risk, currency risk and price risk. Financial Instruments affected by market risk Include Investments, loans and bOrrowlngs, debt Instrument, 
Lrade receivables. trade oavables and lease llabllltles. 

i. Interest rctte risk 
Interest rate risk Is the risk that the fair value or future cash nows of a financial instrument will fluctuate because of changes ,n market Interest rates. As tha company 
does not have any floating Interest rate borrowings or deposits, It Is not exposed to Interest rate risk. 

ii. Foreign CurrenCly risk 
Foreign currency risk Is the risk that the fair value or future cash nows or an exposure will Ouctuate because of changes In foreign exchange rates. The Company's 
e,change risk arises from Its foreign currency assets and liabilities. The Company's exposure to the risk or changes in foreign excl1ange rates arises on account of 
purchases from foreign countrie$. The Company has not taken any derivative Instrument during the year and there is no derivqt1ve mstrument outstanding as at the 
vear end. 
The Company's exposure In foreign curreney at the end of reporting period ; 

Currency 
USD 

Particulars 
Liability 
Tra<fe payables 
Assets 
Trade receivables 
Net exposure on foreign currency risk 

Sensitivity: 

USD 
Increases by 5% 
Decreases bv 5% 

As at March 31. 2024 
FC Rs. 

As at March 31 2023 
FC Rs. 

IGact on profit before tax 
at As at 

March 311 2024 March 31, 2023 
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b) Credit risk 
Credil risk rs the risk that counter party will not meet its obllgatio.ns: under a nnanclal Instruments or customer contract lending to a financral loss. The Company is 
exposed to credit risk from Its operating activities (primarily trade receivables) and from Its Investing activities (primarily deposits with banks and Investment In mutual 
ftJnds). Further, other signiAcant assets for the Company Include security deposits for leased assets. 
The Company monitors the exposure to credit risk on an ongoing basis through ageing analysis and historical collection experience. Outstanding customer receivables 
are regularly monitored by the Chief Flnancial Officer. 
Accordingly the Company considers Lhe credit risk low. 

The maximum cre<llt risks Is represented by t11e total carrying amount of these financial assets m the Balance Sheet. 

Trade receivables 
Cash and cash eoulvalents 
Other bank balances 
Other financial assets 

il Tr-.:tde rAcQivable� 

As at 
March 31. 2029 

1.252.64 
270.38 

28.20 
2.56 

As &t 
March 31 2023 

34S.07 
77.33 

4.03 

Customer credit risk Is managed by the Company subject to the Company's establlshed polley, procedures and control relatmg to customer credit r1sk management. 
Outstanding customer receivables are regularly monitored. To manage this, Lhe company periodically assesses the financial rellablllty ol customers, taking into account 
the financial condition, current economic trends, and analysis of historical bad debts and ageing or trade receivable. The maximum expesure to credit risk at the 
reporting date ls the carrying value of each class of financial assets. The Company does not hold collateral as security. 

ii) Cash and cash equivalents 
Cash and cash cqui11'1lents Including time depaslts with banks and Interest receivobre are placed wfth reputable financial 1nsutut1ons with high credit ratings and no 
history of default. 

iii) Other financiat assets 
Other fin�nclal assets lnclud� security deposits and deposits wit!, banks. cash and cash equivalents and Interest receivable are placed with a reputable financial 
institution with h;gh credit ratings and no history of default. The prov,slon Is recognised based on 12 month expected cre<lit loss model. Counterparty credit risk Is 
assessed by the company on an annual basis ror determination of expected credit loss on these as.secs. 

cl Commoditv rate 
Exposure to market risk with respect to commodity prices primarily arises from lhe Group's purchases and sales of Latex, Latex based gloves and Stainless wires.These 
are commodity products, whose prices may fluctuate significantly over short periods ofl.lme.The prices of the Group's raw materials generally nuctuate In line with 
commodity cycles. cost of raw materials forms the largest portion of the Group's operating expenses. Commodity price risk exposure Is evaluated and managed through 
operating procedures and sourcJng policies. As of March 31, 2024 and March 31, 2023, the Company had not entered Into any material derivative contracts to hedge 
exposure to fluctuations In commodity prices. 

dl Liaulditv risk 

Liquidity risk Is the risk that the Company will encounter difficulty m meeting financial obligations due to shortage of funds. The Company's financing activities are 
managed centrally by maintaining an adequate level of cash and cash equivalents to nnance toe Company's operations. Typically the Company ensures that It has 
sufficient cash on demand to meet expected short t:erm operational expenses, The Con,pany manages Its surplus fund� centrally by plaang them with , cpotable nnandal 
Institution with high credit rating and no history of def.>ult. 

The table below summarises the maturity profile of the Company's flnanclal liabilities at the reporting date. The amounts are based on contractual discounted payments. 

Particulars Qa d�mi!od Less than l ;I. to S iears Illt�L 
As at March 31, 2024 
BorrowinQs 
Trade payables 
Other 

963.09 963.09 

As at March 31, 2023 
2!i;U!2 2!iJ,!!2 

Borrowinos 
Trade payables 744.47 744.47 
Othe,.- 0.07 0.07 

741,:a ZH,51 
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36 Ratio analysis and its elements 

Ratio 

Current ratio 
Debt· Equity R<1tlo 

Debt Service 
Coverage R.atlo" 

Return on Equity 
Ratio 

Trade Receivable 
Turnover Ratio 

Trade Payable 
Turnover Ratio 

Numerator 

Current Assets 
Total Debt 

Earnings for debt service = 
Net profit after taxes + 
Depreciation 

Net Profits after taxes -
Prererence Dividend 

Net credit sales :; Gross 
credit sales - sales return 

Total l'urchases 

Net Capital Turnover Net sales = Total sales • 
Ratio sales rehirn 

Net Profit Ratio 

Inventory Turnover 
Ratio 

Return on Qlpltal 
Employed 

Net Profit 

Cost of goods sold 

Earnings before Interest and 
taxes 

37 Other statutorv information 

Denominator 

Current Uabllltles 
Shareholder's Equity 

Debt service = Interest & 
Lease Payments + 
Prlnclpal Repayments 

Average Shareholder's 
Equity 

Average Trade Recelvable 

Average Trade Payables 

Working capital ~ Current 
assets - Current liabllities 

Net sales = Total sales -
sales return 

Average Inventory 

Capital Employed • 
Tanglble Net Worth + 
Total Debt + DeJerred Tax 
Lia!� 

March 31, 
2024 

1.01 
(1.04) 

0.98 

0.36 

14.05 

12.98 

372.17 

(0.04) 

s.10 

(7.77) 

March 31, 
2023 

0,93 
(0.89) 

6.09 

t.78 

13.90 

9.60 

(27.62) 

(0.57) 

2.40 

15.24 

O/o change 

8% 
17% 

Reason for variance exceeding 250/o as 
compared to the preceding period 

_84 010 lmproved due to decrease in rosses In 
compal'fson to previous year. 

·BO% Improved due to decrease In losses In 
comparison to previous year. 

1% 

JS% Increase majorly due to increase In 
expenses. 

.1448% Increase majorly due to Increase In 
revenue. 

_94% tncreased primarily due ta higher volume or 
sales reV1?nue In current period. 

l 1Z% Increased pnmarlly due to higher volume or 
sales revenue In current period. 

_151 o/o Improved due to decrease fn losses In 
comparison to previous year. 

(1) The Company do not have any Benaml property, where any proceeding has been in,tiated or pending against the Company for holding any Benaml property. 

(Ii) The Company do not have any trensactions with companies struck off. 
(111) The Company do not have any charges or satisfactlon which Is yet to be registered with the Registrar or Companies ("ROC") beyond the statutory period. 

(iv) The Company have riot advanced or loaned or Invested funds to any other person(s) or entlty(les), Including foreign entities (Tntermedlarles) with the 
understanding that the Intermediary sMII; 

(al directly or Indirectly lend or invest In other persons or entitles Identified In any manner whatsoever by or on behalf of the company (Ultlmale Beneficiaries) or 

(b) provide any guarantee, security or the llke to or on behalf of the Ultimate Beneficiaries 
(v) The Company have not received any fund from any person(s) or enlity(les), l11cludlng foreign entitles (Funding Party) with the understanding (whether recorded In 
writing or otherwise) that the Company shall, 

(a) dlrectly 01' indirectly lend or lnvest in other persons or entitles ldentmed In any manner whatsoever by or on behalf or the Funding Party (Ulttmate 
Beneficiaries) or 
(bl provide any guarantee, security or the Hk.e on behalf of the Ultimate Beneficiaries, 

(vi) The Company have not entered Into any sucl1 transaction which Is not recorded In the books or accounts that has been swrendered or disclosed as Income dcirlng 
the period In the tax assessments under the Income Tax Act, I 961 (such as, search or survey or any other relevant provisions or the fncome Tax Act, 1961). 

(vii) The Company does not have any fnvestments/downstream companies. Hence, compliance with number of layers Is not applicable to the Company. 

38 The Code on Social Security, 2020 ('Code') relating to employee benefits during employment and post-employment benefits received Pres1dentfal assent In September 
2020. The Code has been published In the Gazette of India. However, the date on which the Code will come Into effect has not been notified and the final 
rules/Interpretation have not yet been Issued. The Company wlll assess the Impact of the Code when It comes Into errect and will re<;ord any related Impact In the 
period the Code becomes effective. 

39 The previous year's figures have been regroupecl/reclassified, where necessary, to conform to current year·s classification. 
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35 Capital manaqement 

For the purpose of the Company's capital management, capital includes Issued equity capital, Non-Cummulative Compulsorily Convertible 
Preference Shares, securities premium and all other equity reserves attributable to the shareholders of the Company. The primary objective of 
the Company's capital management Is to maintain a strong capital base to ensure sustained growth In business and to maximize the 
shareholders value. The capital management focuses to maintain an optimal structure that balances growth and maximizes shc1reholder value. 

The Company manages Its capital structure and makes adjustments In light of changes In economic conditions and the requirements of the 
financial covenanLs. To maintain or adjust Lhe capital structure, the Company may adjust the dividend payment to sharehOlders, return capital 
to share holders or Issue new shares. 

Particulars 

Borrow1nos (lncludino current maturities) 
Trade Pavables 
Less : Cash and cash equivalents 
Net adjusted debt (A} 

Equity 
Total equity capital (Bl 

Total debt and equity (C)=(A)+(B) 

GearinQ ratio (Al/CC) 

As at 
March 31, 2024 

l,350.00 
963.09 

(270.38) 
2,042.71 

(1,298.77) 
(1,298.77} 

743.94 

2750/o 

As at 
March 31, 2023 

800.00 
744.47 
(77.33) 

1,467.14 

(90Q.4S) 
(900.45} 

566.69 

2590/o 

In order to achieve this overall objective, the Group's capital management, amongst other things, aims to ensure that It meets terms & 
conditions attached to the Interest-bearing loans and borrowings that define capital structure requirements. 

No changes were made in the objectives, policies or processes for managing capital during the year ended March 31, 2024 and March 31, 2023. 


